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OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

To be a trusted and preferred
business process outsourcing (BPO)
service provider to organisations in
key segments of economies in the
region and beyond

We endeavour to delight our customers
with BPO services that use cutting
edge technologies and best practices,
enabled by committed people and
innovative processes that protect the
integrity and security of our customer’s
data and documents
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Vigilant Asia Group Sdn Bhd

Efficient International Sdn Bhd

100% Owned

100% Owned

Efficient Storage Solutions Sdn Bhd

Vigilant Asia (M) Sdn Bhd

100% Owned

100% Owned

Efficient Storage Solutions (Techpark) Sdn Bhd
100% Owned

Kaapagam Technologies Sdn Bhd
65% Owned

Efficient Digital Esplanade Sdn Bhd
100% Owned

Efficient E-Solutions Berhad
Efficient GlobalIT Sdn Bhd

100% Owned

Efficient RE Sdn Bhd
100% Owned

Livingston Education Sdn Bhd
100% Owned

Regalia Records Management Sdn Bhd
30% Owned
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATO’ ABDUL LATIF BIN ABDULLAH
Malaysian, aged 70 years, Male
was appointed as the Chairman and Independent NonExecutive Director of EFFICIENT on 2 August 2004. He is also
a member of Audit Committee and Chairman of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee. He gained his Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in International Relations from University Malaya in
1975, Master of Science (Marine Law & Policy) from University
of Wales (UWIST) in 1981, Senior Management Development
Program from Harvard Business School in 1992 and a member
of Chartered Institute of Logistics & Transport, UK in 1990.
He started his career in 1975 with the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
attached to West Asian Desk. He then joined the Malaysian
International Shipping Corporation Berhad as an Executive,
Liner Division. From 1982 to 1992, he was with Perbadanan
Nasional Shipping Line Berhad (“PNSL”) and was instrumental
in the formation and heading a number of subsidiaries and joint
venture companies with the PNSL Group. He was the General
Manager, Business and Corporate Division before opting
to join Mitsui OSK Lines (M) Sdn Bhd in 1990 as a founder
Director and remains as Chairman after his retirement in 2005.
Presently, Dato’ Abdul Latif serves as Chairman of Ancom
Logistics Berhad. He also holds various private limited
company directorships in Malaysia.

VINCENT CHEAH CHEE KONG
Malaysian, aged 61 years, Male
was appointed as the Managing Director of EFFICIENT on 21
January 2004. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (General Political
Science) from the University of Waterloo, Canada. He has
over 20 years of experience as an entrepreneur in various
industry such as outsourcing services, information technology,
security systems, garment manufacturing, food & beverage
and government supplies.
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He is responsible for formulating and implementing business
policies and corporate strategies of the Group and has been
instrumental in spearheading the progress and development of
the Group to ensure organizational effectiveness.

VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI
Malaysian, aged 50 years, Male
was appointed as an Executive Director and served as CEO of
EFFICIENT from year 2003. He graduated from the University
of Newcastle, Sydney in 1992 with a Bachelor of Commerce
degree majoring in Accounting and Marketing. In May 2008,
he attended the Owner / President Management Programme
at Harvard Business School, Boston, U.S.A.
He started his career in Sime Darby Berhad in 1992, promoted
as Head of Project Sales in Chubb (M) Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of
Sime Darby Bhd in 1994. In 1997, he joined Efficient MailCom
Sdn Bhd (now known as Canon MailCom Malaysia Sdn Bhd)
as a Director until 2016.
He is responsible for the business strategy, corporate
affairs, marketing and operations of the Group. As a leader
who is result oriented and focused, he spearheaded and
implemented various processes for major Group projects in
the areas of financial statement printing, policy printing for
insurance companies and scanning and archiving of security
documents for both private and public sector companies.
He was instrumental in the setting up of the Bukit Jelutong
facilities in Shah Alam, which incorporated the requirements of
financial institutions and insurance companies especially in the
area of data security.
He currently sits on the boards of several other private limited
companies and always seeks to invest in the future by providing
various business opportunities for the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

DATO’ ROBIAH BINTI ABDUL GHANI
Malaysian, aged 66 years, Female
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
EFFICIENT on 3 September 2019. She obtained her Diploma
majoring in Police Science from Universiti Kebangsaan
Malaysia and Certificate in Police Executive Leadership from
Australian Institute of Police Management. She was an exDirector of Management for the Royal Malaysian Police (RMP).
She joined the force since December 1971 and had served the
force for 40 years.
When she was in the RMP, she held various other positions
including as the Assistant Director of the Criminal Investigation
Department or JSJ D6 (Technical Aids), Assistant Director
for JSJ D9 (Special Investigation Unit), Assistant Director for
Public Affairs for PDRM, Deputy Director (Disciplinary Division
Bukit Aman), Deputy Director for the Management Department
Bukit Aman, as Deputy Chief, and Chief of Police for the state
of Pahang.
Presently, Dato’ Robiah serves as member of Board of
Trustees, Yayasan Pengaman Malaysia.

HO HIN CHOY
Malaysian, aged 55 years, Male
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
EFFICIENT on 26 February 2007. He is a member of the Audit
Committee. He graduated from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney with a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting
and is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
(MIA).

services company, in Singapore, as a Financial Accountant
and subsequently, in 1991, he joined DHL Worldwide Express
Sdn Bhd, a courier services company, in Petaling Jaya, as a
Finance Manager. Since 1995, he has been a Capital Markets
Services Representative with Public Investment Bank Bhd.
He also sits on the board of various other private limited
companies in Malaysia.

VOONG KIAN YEE
Malaysian, aged 53 years, Male
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of EFFICIENT on 27 April 2011. He was also appointed
as Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA),
member of Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(MICPA) and member of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
(CTIM). He started his career as with public accounting firms.
In 1998, he joined a group of companies principally involved
in telecommunication and online ventures, as Finance
Manager. Subsequently in 2001, he extended his career as
Finance Manager for a bottling plant in People Republic of
China. He joined Efficient E-Solutions Berhad as Finance and
Administration Manager in 2004. He was a branch manager of
a public accounting firm which he joined since 2006.
Presently, he operates his own company as income tax agent.

He started his career in 1987 with Bland and Partners, Sydney
as an audit and tax agent. He subsequently joined Touche
Ross & Co, England as an exchange trainee in 1988. He
joined Price Waterhouse, Singapore in 1988 as an Auditor.
In 1990, he joined DHL International (S) Pte Ltd, a courier
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

Family relationships

Board Meetings

None of the directors of the Company have any family
relationship with any other directors and / or major shareholders
of the Company except Mr Vincent Cheah Chee Kong who is
the brother of Mr Victor Cheah Chee Wai.

A total of six (6) Board Meetings were held during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019. The record of attendance is
as follows:No. of meetings
attended

Conflict of interests
None of the directors of the Company have any conflict of
interest with the Group.
Conviction for offences
None of the directors has been convicted of any offences
(excluding traffic offences, if any) within the last 5 years.
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Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Vincent Cheah Chee Kong
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Dato’ Robiah binti Abdul Ghani
(Appointed on 3 September 2019)
Esther Soon Yoke Leng
(Resigned on 3 September 2019)
Ho Hin Choy			
Voong Kian Yee		

5/6
4/6
6/6
1/2
4/4
6/6
5/6

KEY MANAGEMENT PROFILE

TAN CHIEW LAN
Chief Financial Officer
Malaysian aged 41 years, Female
Ms. Tan joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer on 14
March 2016.
She graduated from the University of Adelaide, South Australia
in 2001 with a Bachelor of Commerce degree majoring in
Corporate Finance. She is a member of Malaysia Institute of
Accountants (MIA) and Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (CIMA).
She has over 17 years of working experience in accounting,
finance, tax and corporate governance in various industries
which include business process outsourcing, warehousing and
distribution, pharmaceutical and audio industry.
Declaration:
No directorship in other public companies and listed issuers
No conflict of interest with EFFICEN
No family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the listed issuer
No conviction of offences, other than traffic offences (if any)
within the past 5 years

Saifuddin bin Sajad Hussein
Head of Strategy
Malaysian aged 46 years, Male
Mr. Saifuddin joined the Company as Head of Strategy on 1
July 2018.
He graduated from the University of Malaya in 1998 with
a Bachelor of Economics degree majoring in Analytical
Economics. He has also passed the Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) exams in 2000.

He has more than 20 years of working experience in corporate
finance, operations and corporate strategy in various industries
which include business process outsourcing, stockbroking and
investment banking.
Declaration:
No directorship in other public companies and listed issuers
No conflict of interest with EFFICEN
No family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the listed issuer
No conviction of offences, other than traffic offences (if any)
within the past 5 years

Ramesh Naidu
Chief Information Officer
Malaysian aged 43 years, Male
Mr. Ramesh joined the Company as Chief Information Officer
on May 2012.
He has Diploma majoring in Computer Systems Engineering
from Swansea Institute Of Higher Education. He has over
19 years of working experience in Information Technology,
in various industries which include businesses such as
E-Commerce, Micro Financing, System Integration, Data
Center Operations, Software Development & Document
Management Solutions.
Declaration:
No directorship in other public companies and listed issuers
No conflict of interest with EFFICEN
No family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of the listed issuer
No conviction of offences, other than traffic offences (if any)
within the past 5 years
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Overview
Efficient E-Solutions Berhad (“EFFICEN” or “the Group”) has been managing outsourced related services which includes document
storage, scanning and Information Technology (“IT”) services for financial institutions for more than 20 years. In 2018, EFFICEN
expanded its IT outsourcing services by setting up a Regional Security Operations Centre (RSOC) that provide companies 24 x
7 x 365 days comprehensive managed security services to businesses globally.
On 31 December 2015, EFFICEN triggered Paragraph 8.03A(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad whereby the Company has ceased its major business through the disposal of its document printing business
and is required to submit a regularization plan to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). EFFICEN had on 31
December 2019 applied to Bursa Securities for extension of time to submit its regularization plan. On 10 February 2020, Bursa
Securities granted EFFICEN an extension of time up to 30 June 2020 to submit its regularization plan pursuant to paragraph
8.04(3) together with paragraph 5.0 of Practice Note 17 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities.
Financial Review
The following table highlights the Group key financial figures:
							
						
2019
						
RM’000
				
Revenue					
3,957
Gross profit				
1,610
Loss before tax			
(8,317)
Loss after tax				
(8,328)
				
Loss attributable to:				
Equity holders of the parent		
(8,264)
Non-controlling interests		
(64)
						
Non-current assets
		
Current assets
			
Share capital
			
Total equity
			
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
		
Net Assets per share (sen)
Current ratio
			
Debt/Equity ratio			
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(8,328)
74,371
57,616
75,547
129,609
92
2,286
0.18
25.20
0.018

2018
RM’000

RM’000

2019 - 2018
Variance

%

3,745
1,056
(7,642)
(7,656)

212
554
(675)
(672)

6%
52%
9%
9%

(7,590)
(66)

(675)
3

(9%)

(7,656)

(672)

(9%)

77,742
(3,371)
61,738
(4,122)
75,547
137,937
(8,328)
79
13
1,464
822
0.19
(0.01)
42.18 		
0.011		

(4%)
(7%)
0%
(6%)
16%
56%
(11%)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (cont’d)

Financial year 2019 the Group sees a steady growth of 6%
in revenue from 2018. The two mainstreams of revenue for
the Group are Document Storage and IT Services. IT services
especially cybersecurity had slowly gained traction. Marketing
efforts through providing cybersecurity awareness talk,
participated in various exhibitions, roadshows and continuously
developing the talent pool. The main contributor of revenue
growth was IT Services segment, it increased the overall
Group’s revenue from RM3.75 million to RM3.96 million, IT
and cybersecurity has become part of everyone’s daily life as
long as we stay connected on the internet, whether for work or
leisure, online shopping, social media, and digital engagement
all are at risk to cyber-attacks. As for document storage there’s
a slight decreased 5.6% in revenue as compared to 2018 due
to a large scheduled one-off destruction of boxes that have
lapsed the time bar for statutory safe keeping.

MYR'000

2018

However, given that the move towards digital engagement
in the workplace and in social circles will only continue to
grow, we believe that there is going to be continued demand
for cybersecurity services as a result. This optimism stems
from two main factors which are; increased working from
home trends as well as compliance with Bank Negara’s Risk
Management in Technology (“RMiT”) guidelines.

2,476

1,886
1,500
1,418
1,000

MYR'000
1,500
1,300
1,100
900
700
500
300
100

2016

2017

2019

Document Storage
1,252

1,294

2017

2018

1,221

727

2016

Prospects

2,270

2,500

500

As of 31 December 2019, total assets of the Group were RM132
million against total liabilities of RM2.4 million. The Group has
a healthy financial position with strong cash position, minimal
liabilities and debt-free. The Group is consistently looking for
business expansion opportunity in both document storage and
IT services segment.

For 2020, based on the most recent forecast by Bank Negara
the economy is expected to contract between -2.0% to -0.5%.
We are in a midst of an unprecedented global pandemic for
which at this point there is no full visibility of the economic
impact. Hence, we see that majority of companies have
become very conservative in spending and slashing budgets
that they may view as non-essential or not contributing towards
revenue growth.

IT Services

2,000

The Group posted RM8.3 million loss after tax for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to RM7.7 million
loss after tax in year 2018. During the year, the Group has
made a provision of RM1.1 million for impairment of goodwill
on consolidation, intellectual property and property, plant and
equipment according to accounting standard. The provision of
impairment was based on the assessment of the recoverable
value-in-use of the affected subsidiaries and PPE.

From our other research and from threat intelligence partners
we have seen that cyber criminals have intensified their attacks
during this current pandemic crisis. This further heightens the
need to increase cybersecurity spending to protect company
data which resides outside the protection of their traditional
defenses like firewalls.

2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (cont’d)

Secondly, Bank Negara’s RMiT guidelines has come to effect
from 1 Jan 2020. We see many financial institutions regulated
by Bank Negara coming out with tenders and request for
proposals in the coming months in order to comply with Bank
Negara guidelines.

On top of that, Vigilant also won few awards from Cybersecurity
Excellence Awards
(1) Cybersecurity Service Provider of the Year - APAC

During this period we have strengthened our processes by
obtaining ISO27001 as well as obtained CREST certification
for our penetration testing. This will further give confidence for
customers to work with us in the future.
The recent Covid-19 pandemic and soft global economies
have impacted Document storage business especially during
the Movement Control Order (MCO), Conditional Movement
Control Order (CMCO) and Recovery Movement Control
Order (RMCO) period. It has slowed down the cartons
collection and the sales cycle have prolonged. However, the
Group is optimistic on the demand for document storage as
the regulatory requirement of records keeping has not been
changed.

(2) Cybersecurity Team of the Year – APAC

Award
Vigilant Asia (M) Sdn Bhd (“Vigilant”) was awarded
“CyberSecurity Company Of The Year by Cyber Security
Malaysia (CSM) during CSM ACE 2019 Conference.

(3) Cybersecurity Product Of the Year – Managed Security
Service - APAC

10
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

At EFFICEN, we believe building a sustainable business
environment is important to achieve The Group’s long-term
success. The Group recognizes the importance of incorporating
Economic, Environmental and Social (EES) into its operations.
Economic
Supply Chain Management
The Group inculcates fair and unbiased procurement policy
meant to encourage transparent and open competition in
obtaining best price and good quality products and services for
the Group. The Group carried out annual vendors’ evaluation
to assess vendor performance to make sure it meets the
Group’s requirement.

Data privacy and security
Continuous effort in creating cyber safety awareness has
been the key focus of the Group during the year. Numerous
participations in exhibitions, roadshows and training to
businesses and public. Cybersecurity is part of our daily life,
digital transformation and increase usage of smartphone has
increase the cyber risk exposure. If it is not carefully protected,
data privacy and security may be compromised.

Environment
Three key initiatives identified and implemented during the year:

Energy Consumption
Total electricity usage for 2019 across
the Group based on electricity bills
were 380k kWh.
Initiative of changing fluorescence
light to light-emitting diodes (LEDs)
were carried out during the year.
Staff are required to switch off the
light and air-conditioner when not in
use especially during lunch break.
Initiatives carried out by the Group
has successfully lower down the
energy consumption of the Group.

Water Management

Waste Management

Clean water supply without
disruption is important. During the
year, there were few water
disruptions in Selangor. The Group
prepared approximately 1,915 litres
of Reverse Osmosis (RO) water for
staff to use in office and at home.

Waste are segregated for reuse and
recycle.

The Group self-supplies Reverse
Osmosis (RO) water for office staff.

Licensed waste disposal contractors
are engaged to dispose the waste.
The Group advocates “Go Green”
and inculcates green habits
amongst the employees.
Recycle bins are placed at different
areas in the office.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)

Social
Talent Attraction, Development & Retention
In year 2019, the EFFICEN group of companies have a
relatively stable workforce with an average employee turnover
rate of not more than 10% per month. With that in mind, we
placed our focus in working in collaboration with some of the
local universities to offer 3 to 6 months internship program
for their local and overseas students. These universities

12
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are namely the Taylor’s University, Management & Science
University (MSU), Asia Pacific University and a few more. In
addition to the local students, we had students from China,
Indonesia, Egypt, Bangladesh, Mauritius and Maldives who
have successfully completed the training program with us.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)

Indeed, the internship program has enabled us in engaging
with the young generation more effectively and simultaneously
allowed these gen Z students inject energy into the current
workplace; bringing creative ideas, awesome suggestions and
enthusiasm that the existing workforce may be lacking. We
recognized that interns able to bring a new perspective on
how they view their workplace culture and let us know what
methods are working and what isn’t.

Employee Engagement & Welfare

Most importantly, the internship program also serves well as
an effective recruitment tool where potential talents are being
identified. As of today, we have nearly 30 interns that have
been trained in our program, and some have been offered a
permanent position with us upon completion of their internship
program. We hope that they may go on to become primary
influencers and decision makers in the corporate world in the
future.

In this respect, the HR team has launched the “Employees
Satisfaction Survey” in the last quarter of 2019 by having a oneto-one interviewing session with the employees; especially the
executives and non-executives. Through this program we aim
to increase the level of engagement of our employees and to
further reduce the employee turnover.

We would like to have this platform as an on-going effort to
provide learning opportunity for students to gain invaluable
real-world experience where they will learn about office
dynamics, relationships with coworkers, business challenges,
work expectations and teamwork. This is not just another
program but instead is a program that works and is found
rewarding to both the interns and the company. Ultimately, this
provides job employment opportunity and allows us to fill up
the unemployment gap of the young generation in the country.

We are committed to continue enhancing employee
engagement by creating an inclusive work environment
where everyone is respected, valued and feels belonged. We
encourage interactive and open communication at all levels
to improve work processes and strengthen bonding among
employees.

In the coming year, we also aim to create a more fit and healthy
workforce where there are more health-related programs such
as health talks, group exercise hours, outdoor activities, weight
lost competition, friendly matches etc. be organized. These
programs will be designed and administered to ensure our
employees will benefit from it.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of Efficient E-Solutions Berhad
(“Company”) comprises the following directors:
Chairman
Voong Kian Yee
Independent Non-Executive Director
Members
Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Ho Hin Choy
Independent Non-Executive Director
The composition of the Audit Committee is in compliance with
paragraph 15.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements.
Meetings
A total of five (5) Audit Committee Meetings were held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The record of
attendance is as follows:No. of meeting
attended
Voong Kian Yee
Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Ho Hin Choy

5/5
5/5
5/5

The Executive Directors, Senior Management, representatives
from the Internal and External Auditors were also being invited
to the Audit Committee Meetings to facilitate the discussions
on the Group’s activities concerning them.

14
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Functions and Duties
The Audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with
the Terms of Reference duly reviewed and approved by the
Board at least once every three (3) years.
The roles and responsibilities, amongst others, of the Audit
Committee are as follows:•
To review the audit plan with the external auditors;
•
To review the evaluation of the systems of internal controls
with the external auditors;
•
To review the audit report with the external auditors;
•
To review the assistance given by the Company’s and
Group’s employees to the external auditors;
•
To review the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the internal audit function
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its
work;
•
To review the internal audit programmes, processes, the
results of the internal audit programmes, processes or
investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate
action is taken on the recommendations of the internal
audit function;
•
To review the quarterly results and year end financial
statements, prior to the approval of the Board of Directors,
focusing particularly on:(i) changes in or implementation of major accounting
policy changes;
(ii) significant and unusual events; and
(iii) compliance with accounting standards and other
legal requirements.
•
To review any related party transaction and conflicts of
interest situation that may arise within the Group including
any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that
raises questions of management integrity;
•
To review all areas of significant risk arrangements in
place to contain those risks to acceptable levels;
•
To verify that the allocation of options pursuant to the
share scheme for employees complies with the criteria of
allocation;
•
To review the resignation or dismissal of the external
auditors of the Company;

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

•
•
•

To review whether there is reason (supported by grounds)
to believe that the Group’s external auditor is not suitable
for re-appointment;
To recommend the nomination of external auditors, the
audit fees and any question of resignation or dismissal;
and
To promptly report to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on
matters which result in a breach of Listing Requirements.

Summary of Works of the Audit Committee
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
activities of the Audit Committee covered, amongst others, the
following:
1.

Quarterly and annual financial statements
The Audit Committee held its scheduled meetings to
review and deliberate the Company’s quarterly reports
and annual financial statements as presented by the
Management, focusing particularly on:
the going concern assumption;
the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting
policies and practices and whether the quality of
financial reporting is adequate
significant audit adjustments as recommended by
the Internal or External Auditors;
major judgemental areas made by the Management
and reported all its comments and concerns to the
Board for their further consideration prior to releasing
the same to the public

2.

External Audit
Before audit commenced, the Audit Committee had
a detailed discussion with the External Auditors on
their Audit Plan which specified the nature, scope and
methodology of the audit including identified risk areas
and any additional agreed upon procedures so to ensure
the audit process is effective and efficient. Final audit plan
was brought to the Board for approval.
The Audit Committee met with the External Auditors
again after the completion of the audit and discussed with
them, among others, problems and reservation arising
from the audit, assistance given by the Company’s and
Group’s employees to the External Auditors during their
course of audit, External Auditors’ management letter
and Management’s response thereto as well as the
appropriateness of the content of the audited financial
statements. All the feedbacks from the External Auditors
were reported to the Board for consideration.
Thereafter, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
performance of the External Auditors, Messrs PKF,
who due for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
After considering the independence, objectivity and the
reasonableness of the proposed audit remuneration, the
Audit Committee recommended to the Board on the reappointment of Messrs PKF.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

3.

4.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Function

The Audit Committee was assigned to oversee the
performance and objectivity of the Internal Audit function
of the Company. Throughout the financial year 2019,
the Audit Committee sit down with the Internal Auditors
to discuss and review their internal audit program, audit
findings and management’s responses to the control
deficiencies duly identified by the Internal Auditors.
Recommendations made by the Internal Auditors to
address such deficiencies were reported to the Board for
deliberation and implementation, if deemed appropriate.
The Audit Committee also assisted to ensure that the
Internal Audit Function is adequately resourced to carry
out its duties and responsibilities.

The Company has engaged IA Essential Sdn Bhd, a risk
consultancy specialist, as its internal auditors to assist the
Audit Committee and the Board in the effective discharge of
their responsibilities and functions for the financial year. The
Internal Auditors reports to the Audit Committee and is guided
by its Audit Charter in its independent appraisal function.
The cost incurred for the internal audit function amounted to
RM49,812.79 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) and Conflict of
Interest
All the Group’s RPTs, whether the transaction was
recurring or a one-off event, were identified, tracked,
and monitored in accordance with the provisions in the
Main Market Listing Requirements. The Audit Committee
reviewed the Group’s RPTs in the past financial year with
the objective to ensure that such transactions were not
detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company
and adequate disclosures were properly made by the
Board.
The Audit Committee also reported to the Board that to the
best of their knowledge, no conflicts of interest exist within
the Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2019.

16
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The Internal Auditors covered the following activities during the
financial year ended 2019:
•
•
•
•

Performed internal audit work on the key risk areas
in accordance with the approved internal audit plan,
including related follow-up activities.
Reviewed the integrity and reliability of the system of
internal controls of the Group.
Reviewed and commented on the efficiency, effectiveness
and adequacy of the existing control policies and
procedures.
Provided recommendations for the improvement of the
control policies and procedures.

The Board is of the view that there is no significant breakdown
or weaknesses in the systems of internal controls of the Group
that may result in material losses incurred by the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
(“CG”) Overview Statement. This CG Overview Statement is
presented pursuant to Paragraph 15.25(1) of the Main Market
Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the obligation of the Board
under Notes 3.1A and 3.1B of the Practice Note 9 of the MMLR.
In this respect, Board is require to summarise its key corporate
governance practices during the financial year with reference
to the principles of (a) board leadership and effectiveness; (b)
effective audit and risk management; (c) integrity in corporate
reporting and meaningful relationship with stakeholders; and
highlight the Board focus areas and future priorities in relation
to its corporate governance practices.
The Board has also provided specific disclosures on the
application of each Practices in its Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Report”). The CG Report was announced
together with the Annual Report of the Company on 24 June
2020. Shareholders may obtain the CG Report by accessing
this link https://www.efficient.com.my for further details and are
advised to read this CG Overview Statement together with the
CG Report.
Board Key Focus Areas
As the Company remains as the Affected Listed Issuer under
Paragraph 8.03A of the MMLR, the key focus area and objective
of the Board during the financial year is to identify targeted
businesses to be acquired which can generate adequate level
of operations and profit to warrant continued trading and listing
of the Company on Bursa Securities’ Main Market.

Board Leadership and Effectiveness
The Board continues to review, evaluate and deliberate new
business opportunities proposed by Management during all
board meetings held in the financial year. The Board aims
to ensure that any new businesses to be acquired would
contribute to adequate level of operations and profit to warrant
continued trading and listing on Bursa Main Market as well as
within the risk appetite of the Group. On the same point, when
deliberating these new business opportunities, non-executive
directors of the Board provided their independent views, advice
and judgment on the targeted businesses in order to help the
Board to arrive at an objective and fair decision in the interests
of shareholders at large.
In respect of the business of cyber security services, the Group
was exploring new collaborations with other business partners
to promote the business. The Board is overseeing this initiative
to ensure that any new collaboration will help to facilitate the
management in achieving the critical mass needed to increase
the income and profit of this business segment.
The present Board composition reflects strong element of
independence with non-executive members and independent
directors constituting the majority members of the Board. The
Board acknowledges the importance of gender diversity in
the Board. Accordingly, the Board had appointed a female
independent director, Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani, an exAdministrative Director of the Royal Malaysian Police (RMP)
after the resignation of Ms Esther Soon Yoke Leng.

At the same time, the Board is also monitoring the management
and business performances of the IT security and consultation
services of Kaapagam Technologies Sdn Bhd and Vigilant
Asia (M) Sdn Bhd which the Group had ventured in year 2017
respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (cont’d)

The current age distribution and skillsets of the existing Board members are as follows:
Nationality
Malaysian

Foreign

Male

Female

Executive Director

2

-

2

-

Independent and Non-Executive
Director

4

-

3

1

Age Group

40-49 years

50-59 years

60-69 years

70-79 years

Executive Director

-

1

1

-

Independent and Non-Executive
Director

-

2

1

1

Accounting,
Finance &
Corporate
Governance
Management

Shipping /
Logistics

Corporate
Planning &
Development

Commercial
/ Marketing
& Business
Management

Crime and
Investigation

Executive
Director

-

-

1

1

-

Independent and
Non-Executive
Director

2

1

-

-

1

Skill

18

Gender
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (cont’d)

Board Meeting Attendance and Training
The underlying factors of Directors’ commitment to the
Group are devotion of time and continuous improvement of
knowledge and skill set. During the financial year under review,
six (6) Board Meetings were held. The details of attendance
of the members are shown on page 6 of this Annual Report.

The Board acknowledges that continuous training is essential
for the Directors to be equipped to effectively discharge their
duties. The trainings attended by Directors during the financial
year are as below:

Director

Training Attended

Mr. Vincent Cheah Chee Kong
(Managing Director)

i)
ii)

CSM-ACE 2019_11th Cyber Security Malaysia Awards, Conference & Exhibition
Malaysia SME Congress 2019

Mr. Victor Cheah Chee Wei
(Executive Director)

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

Gartner Customer Experience & Technologies Summit
The Neuroscience of Leadership and Performance
Cyber Security in the Boardroom – Accelerating from Acceptance to Action
insigHT2019 Conference

Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah
i)
(Chairman, Senior Independent NonExecutive Director)

The Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009 and Anti-Money Laundering,
Anti-Terrorism Financing and Proceeds of unlawful Activities Act 2001

Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani
i)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mandatory Accreditation Programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies

Mr. Voong Kian Yee
i)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)
x)

Income Tax Amnesty For Undisclosed Income - The Special Voluntary Disclosure
Programme
Cyber Security in the Board Room
Optimising Tax Benefits for Companies & Related Entities
Crucial Tax Compliance Issues for Companies
Implications on The Introduction of Digital Tax in Malaysia
Companies Act 2016
Companies Act 2016 - The Transitional Provision & Practices
Understanding Capital Allowances and Reinvestment Allowances
2020 Budget Seminar
The New Companies (Amendment) Bill 2019

Mr. Ho Hin Choy
i)
(Independent Non-Executive Director) ii)
iii)

Leveraged & Inverse ETFS Talk
The Investor’s Toolbox : Strategies for Warrants, ETFs and Derivatives
In-house AML/CFT Training for 2019: Battling Money Laundering & Terrorism
Financing in Malaysia
iv) Cyber Security in the Boardroom
v) Phillips Capital 10th Annual Investment Conference 2019
vi) Navigating The New Normal Edge
vii) In house Training 2019 – Financial Services Act 2013 (FSA 2013 & Personal Data
Protection Act 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (cont’d)

The details of Directors remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:
Fees

Salaries
and Other
Emoluments
(RM)
(RM)

Bonus

Benefits-inKind

EPF and
SOCSO

Total

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

(RM)

Received from the Company
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah

-

22,000

-

-

-

22,000

Cheah Chee Kong

-

900,000

-

-

108,786

1,008,786

Victor Cheah Chee Wai

-

600,000

-

-

72,923

672,923

Soon Yoke Leng

-

156,000

-

-

19,182

175,182

Voong Kian Yee

-

15,000

-

-

-

15,000

Ho Hin Choy

-

15,000

-

-

-

15,000

Dato' Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani

-

2,000

-

-

-

2,000

Received From Other Subsidiaries of the Group
Cheah Chee Kong

-

-

-

36,800

-

36,800

Victor Cheah Chee Wai

-

-

-

28,000

-

28,000

Soon Yoke Leng

-

-

Total

-

1,710,000

The following table depicts the remuneration paid out to top 3
Senior Management for the financial year 2019:

Remuneration
Salary, allowances,
bonus & BIK

No. of Senior
Management
Staff
3

RM
533,948

Principle B: Effective Audit and Risk Management
The Audit Committee (“AC”) continues to play an important role
in ensuring the integrity, clarity and relevant of the information
disclosed in the Annual Report. Before finalising the various
governance disclosures in the Annual Report, the AC together
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-

13,200

-

13,200

78,000

200,891

1,988,891

with the Executive Board Members and management, reviewed
the Corporate Governance (“CG”) Report, CG Overview
Statement, AC Report, Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control, Management Discussion and Analysis,
Sustainability Statement and Directors’ Responsibility
Statement.
The AC is responsible to review audit plans and audit reports
of both internal and external auditors. The AC also deliberated
the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Group to
ensure it gives a fair and balances view of the Group’s financial
position, performance and prospects as well as complies with
the provisions of the Companies Act and applicable approved
accounting standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (cont’d)

In the process of identifying suitable investment, the AC ensure
that adequate due diligence processes are carried out on the
new business proposed by management. In addition, AC
reviewed the performance of the current businesses and the
related party transactions to ensure it is within arm’s length and
is entered into in the normal course of business. Other key
details of the risk management and internal control systems
overseeing by the AC are presented in the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control set out on pages 23 to 25 of
this Annual report.

Separately, the Company has also reported its
Sustainability Statement on pages 11 to13 of this Annual
Report covering the aspects of governance, environment
and social responsibility for stakeholders’ reference.
(II) General Meetings
The Board would ensure that Notice of the AGM is sent
at least twenty eight (28) days ahead of the date of AGM.
In order to be consistent with this, the Board had planned
to issue the notice of the forthcoming AGM in 2020 on
24 June 2020 which is more than 28 days’ notice for the
holding the Company’s AGM on 23 July 2020. The Notice
of the AGM will also include proposed resolution as well
as the explanation for each proposed resolution. These
resolutions will be subject to vote by poll during the AGM.

Board had outsourced internal audit function to an internal audit
consulting firm IA Essential Sdn Bhd. Functionally, the Internal
Auditors report to the AC directly and they are responsible for
conducting reviews and appraisals on the governance, risk
management and internal controls and processes within the
Group.

During the last AGM on 27 Jun 2019, all directors were
present except for the Managing Director who was absent
due to prior commitment which could not be re-scheduled.
Nonetheless, the Board members including the Chairman
and Board Committees had addressed issues raised by
the Shareholders during the AGM.

Details of reviews and activities carried out by the Internal
Auditors as well as the internal audit resources are presented
in the AC Report on page 16.
Principle C: Integrity in Corporate Reporting And
Meaningful Relationship With Stakeholders
(I)

Communication with Stakeholder
The Board recognises the importance of keeping
shareholders and investors informed of the Group’s
business and corporate developments. It is believed
that clear and consistent communication with investors
promotes better appreciation of the Company’s business
and activities, reduces share price volatility, and allows
the Company’s business and prospects to be evaluated
fairly.

Way Forward
The priority of the Group going forward is:
i.

To continue to explore and secure new businesses to
generate and maintain adequate level of operation in the
Group in order to sustain its listing on Bursa; and

ii.

To improve the income and profit of the Group’s existing
IT security services.

Presently, the information on the Company’s annual
reports, quarterly financial results and various
announcements are disclosed and disseminated to
the public and shareholders in the Bursa and the
Company websites. Shareholders and investors are also
encouraged to interact and feedback to the Chairman for
opinions or concerns during the AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (cont’d)

Towards this end, the Board will:
a.

Continue to discharge its leadership role in reviewing,
challenging and deciding on management’s business
proposals for the Company;

b.

Ensure that strategically the new business can support
the long-term value creation and strategies on economic,
environmental and social considerations underpinning
sustainability; and

c.

Supervise and assess management performance on
the existing cyber security business to ensure that the
business is being properly managed.

Separately, the Board will also ensure that the Group establishes
adequate preventive procedures to prevent the occurrence of
corrupt practices and to defend against the legal liability under
Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act
2009 which will effective on 1 June 2020. These adequate
procedures will include putting in place structured policies and
procedures on anti-corruption and whistleblowing; and assess
the corruption risk as part of Group’s annual risk assessment.
This Corporate Governance Overview Statement has been
approved by the Board on 11 June 2020.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that:
i.
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The annual audited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company are drawn up in accordance with
applicable Financial Reporting Standards, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2016 and the MMLR so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the Company for the financial year, and
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ii.

Proper accounting and other records are kept which
enable the preparation of the financial statements with
reasonable accuracy and taking reasonable steps to
ensure that appropriate systems are in place to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.

In the preparation of the financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have adopted
appropriate accounting policies and have applied them
consistently in the financial statements with reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates. The Directors are also
satisfied that all relevant approved accounting standards have
been followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Efficient E-Solutions Berhad
is pleased to present its Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control for the financial year ended 31 December
2019. This Statement describing the state of risk management
and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) is prepared and disclosed pursuant to paragraph
15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”)
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and
is guided by the Statement on Risk Management & Internal
Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“Guidelines”)
which was endorsed by Bursa Securities.
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for reviewing
the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, identifying principal risks and
establishing appropriate controls and framework to manage
risks in order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the
Group’s assets.
The Board understands the principal risks of the business
that the Group involves and accepts that business decisions
require the balancing of risk and return in order to reward
the shareholders. Functionally, risk management are the
responsibility of all Executive Directors and management staff
members who manage the business risks in the Group and
ensure that businesses are under control.
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company remains as the Affected Listed Issuer under
Paragraph 8.03A of the MMLR. Therefore, the main focus
area of the Board is to invest and acquire new businesses in
order to generate and maintain adequate level of operation to
warrant continued trading or listing on Bursa.

Thus, in the process of identifying suitable investment, the key
risk faced by the Board is to identify targeted businesses to
be acquired which can generate adequate level of operations,
profit, as well as within the risk appetite of the Board. In order
to manage this risk, the Board and management continue
pooling their effort in studying and evaluating new business
opportunities and when appropriate, engage professionals
to conduct due diligence on these targeted businesses to be
acquired.
The outcome and progress of the investment evaluations
and due diligence were tabled and briefed by the Executive
Directors and management to the Board. At this stage, the
Independent Directors’ views and opinions on the targeted
businesses were provided to ensure that business decisions
are made objectively and soundly.
In respect to the cyber security services provided, the key
challenge of the business is to increase the revenue and
income to be generated from this business segment. In
order to address this challenge, management had formed
collaborations with other service providers to promote cyber
security services and other consulting services to both
domestic and overseas markets.
KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Fundamentally, the key internal control procedures and
processes in the Group are as follows:
(i)

Delegation and separation of responsibilities between
the Board and management. The Executive Directors
are responsible and report to the Board on operational
performance and management while the Board
scrutinises the management performance to ensure their
effectiveness;

(ii)

Management organisation structure defining the
management responsibilities and hierarchical structure of
monitoring, reporting and accountability;
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(cont’d)

(iii) Management monitoring and review of financial and
operational performance of the present Group’s activities;
(iv) The Audit Committee reviews in consultation with
management, the unaudited quarterly financial results
and the Group’s progress towards achieving the desired
financial performance;
(v)

An internal audit function to assist the Audit Committee
and the Board in conducting independent assessment
on the systems of internal control and the governance
practices;

(vi) The Audit Committee overseeing management
implementation of remedial action for findings identified
by the Internal Auditors;
(vii) Board representations in the company which the Group
has investment namely Regalia Records Management
Sdn Bhd; and
(viii) The internal and external physical security controls
installed in the premises to prevent unauthorized access
of the building and customers’ details and information.
(ix) Standard operating procedures under the ISO 27001:
2013 on Security Operations Centre and Cyber Security
Consulting is applied to the operational procedures in
the provision of vendor management, measurement
of control, project management of information security
services, incident management on issues arises from
customer, change management of information security
services, system planning and acceptance policy.
(x)
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Potential financial risk exposure resulting from IT Security
Operation and data centre activities, fire, professional
indemnity, product liability machines equipment and
public liability are insured to minimise Group’s financial
exposures and losses; and
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BOARD REVIEW
The Board has not formed a dedicated committee to oversee
risk management in the Group. Nonetheless, the Board
will evaluate the need for implementing a structured risk
management upon completion of its regularisation plan.
Presently, the Board assumes the risk management oversight
responsibility directly, and continues to obtain comfort on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk
management and internal control from the following processes
and information:
•

Periodic review of financial information covering financial
performance and quarterly financial results;

•

Board discussions with management during the Board
Meetings on business ventures and operational issues as
well as the measures taken by management to mitigate
and manage business and operation issues;

•

Audit Committee’s review and consultation with
management on the integrity of the financial results,
annual report and audited financial statements;

•

Audit findings and reports on the review of the systems of
internal control from the Internal Auditors; and

•

Management assurance that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems have been operating
adequately under the current operating environment in all
material respects.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(cont’d)

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND ASSURANCE

REVIEW BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In accordance with the Bursa Securities’s Guidelines,
management is responsible to identify risks relevant to the
business of the Group’s objectives and strategies; implementing
and maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal control; and monitoring and reporting to the Board of
significant control deficiencies and changes in risks that could
significantly affect the Group achievement of its objectives and
performance.

As required by Paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR, the External
Auditors have reviewed this Statement. In accordance with
the Audit and Assurance Practice Guide 3 (“AAPG3”) issued
by Malaysian Institute of Accountants. However, AAPG3 does
not require the External Auditors to consider whether this
Statement covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control procedures.

In making this Statement, Group Managing Director has
represented to the Board that, to the best of his knowledge the
Group’s systems of risk management and internal control are
operating at satisfactory level based on the current operating
environment.
BOARD ASSURANCE AND LIMITATION

The External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on
for inclusion in this Annual Report and have reported to the
Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with their
understanding of the processes the Board and management
have adopted in the review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group.

For the financial year under review, the Board is satisfied
that the existing level of systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group are adequate for its current level
of operations. There were no material losses resulted from
significant control weaknesses that would require additional
disclosure in the Annual Report. In reporting this Statement,
the Board had excluded its consideration in the associated
companies which the Board have no control over their
operations.
The Board recognises that the systems of risk management
and internal control should be continuously improved in line
with the evolving business environment. Nonetheless, it should
be noted that all systems of risk management and systems of
internal control are only able to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives. Accordingly,
all systems of risk management and internal control can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatements, frauds and losses.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

Disclosure pursuant to Paragraph 9.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

(i)

Utilisation of Proceeds
In financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had completed the disposal of its entire equity interests in Efficient
MailCom Sdn Bhd and Efficient Softech Sdn Bhd to Canon Singapore Pte Ltd for a total cash consideration of RM75.0
million, subject to such adjustments as may be agreed between the parties.
The status of utilisation of proceeds during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are as below:

Purpose			
					
					

Proposed
Utilisation
RM’ million

Actual
Utilisation
RM’ million

Intended
Timeframe
for Utilisation

Proposed Distribution

12.1

12.1

Within 6 months

Development of the document
management segment and/or acquisition
of viable new businesses and/or assets

53.5

18.7

Within 18 months

Working Capital		

8.0

8.0

Within 12 months

Estimated expenses in relation
to the Proposals		

1.4

1.4

Within 1 month

(ii) Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Group since the end of the preceding year which are still subsisting.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION (cont’d)

Disclosure pursuant to Paragraph 9.25 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

(iii) Recurrent Related Party Transactions (“RRPT”) of Revenue Nature
The aggregate value of the RRPT conducted between the Company’s subsidiaries with the related parties during the financial
year is as follows:
			

Related Transacting Parties

Related Parties and Relationship

Regalia Records Management Sdn Bhd (“RRM”)
					

RRM is deemed related to the Group by virtue of a director of the
Group, Victor Cheah Chee Wai, is also the director in RRM.

					
					

RRM is an associated company of Efficient E-Solutions Berhad which
holds 30% equity interest in RRM.

Olive Tree Concepts Sdn Bhd (“OTC”)
					

OTC is deemed related to the Group by virtue of a Director of the
Group, Victor Cheah Chee Wai, is also the Director in OTC.

					
					

OTC is a company connected to a Director of the Group, Cheah Chee
Kong, by virtue of Section197 of the Companies Act 2016.

Efficient Protection Services Sdn Bhd (“EPS”)
					
					

EPS is a company connected to a Director of Efficient E-Solutions
Berhad, Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani, by virture of Section 197 of
the Companies Act 2016.

No. Nature of Transactions			

Amount transacted (RM)

1

Provision of document archiving and related services by RRM		

2,400

2

Provision of document archiving and related services to RRM		

1,221,317

3

IT Services provided to RRM			

312,000

4

IT Services provided to OTC			

1,056,000

5

Provision of RO water to OTC			

48,189

6

Provision of RO water to RRM			

6,900

7

Provision of security services by EPS			

132,876
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note
9 to the financial statements.
There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial year.
Results
Group		 Company
RM		 RM
Loss for the financial year				

8,327,860

9,856,913

Attributable to:			
Owners of the parent				
Non-controlling interest 				

8,264,242
63,618

9,856,913
-

								

8,327,860

9,856,913

Reserves and provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed in the
financial statements.
Dividends
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of previous financial year. The Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the current financial year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)

Directors
The directors who held office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of this
report are:
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah
Cheah Chee Kong
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Ho Hin Choy
Voong Kian Yee
Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani			
Soon Yoke Leng					

Appointed on 03 September 2019
Resigned on 03 September 2019

The name of the directors’ of the Company’s subsidiaries since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report,
excluding those who already disclosed is:
Clement Arul Jeeva Susai Arul
Ramesh Naidu A/L Raju Naidu
Tan Chiew Lan
Edward Cheah Wern Harn				

Appointed on 31 March 2020

Directors’ interests in shares
The shareholdings in the Company and related corporations of those who were directors at the end of the financial year, as
recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, are as follows:
							
Number of ordinary shares
						 Balance as at				
In the Company			
1.1.2019
Bought
Sold

Balance as at
31.12.2019

Direct Interest:				
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah
100,000
100,000
Cheah Chee Kong
9,734,500
9,734,500
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
6,000,000
6,000,000
				
Indirect Interest:				
Cheah Chee Kong
213,995,000
213,995,000
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
213,995,000
213,995,000
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Directors’ interests in shares (cont’d)
By virtue of Cheah Chee Kong’s and Victor Cheah Chee Wai’s interest in the shares of the Company, Cheah Chee Kong and
Victor Cheah Chee Wai are also deemed to be interested in the shares of all the related corporations to the extent the Company
has an interest.
The other directors in office at the end of the financial year, did not hold any interest in the Ordinary Shares of the Company and
related corporations during the financial year, according to the register required to be kept under Section 59 of the Companies
Act, 2016 in Malaysia.
Directors’ benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors as shown
in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm
of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for those
disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during or at the end of the financial year, which had the object of enabling the directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
Directors’ remuneration and fee
The Group and the Company directors’ remuneration and fee are amounting to RM2,174,891 and RM1,910,891 respectively as
disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.
Indemnity and insurance for directors, officers and auditors
There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for any director, officer or auditor of the Company.
Issue of shares and debentures
There were no changes in the share capital of the Company during the financial year.
There were no debentures issued during the financial year.
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Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted by the Company to any party during the financial year to take up unissued shares of the Company.
Other statutory information
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain
that:
(i)

proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and have
satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debts and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii)

any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i)

which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or render the amount of the provision for doubtful debts inadequate to
any substantial extent; or

(ii)

which would render the value attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading; or

(iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the
Company misleading or inappropriate; or
(iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the
ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
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Other statutory information (cont’d)
In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has
any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.
Significant event
Details of significant event is disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
Events subsequent to year end
Details of events subsequent to year end is disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements.
Auditors
The auditors, Messrs PKF, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.
The auditors’ remuneration of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RM61,300 and RM34,000 respectively.
Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

____________________________________________
CHEAH CHEE KONG

____________________________________________
VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI
Selangor
11 June 2020
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016 IN MALAYSIA
In the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 41 to 127 are drawn up in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

____________________________________________
CHEAH CHEE KONG

____________________________________________
VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI
Selangor
11 June 2020
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STATUTORY DECLARATION

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016 IN MALAYSIA
I, TAN CHIEW LAN being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the accompanying financial statements as set out
on pages 41 to 127 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true
and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960 in Malaysia.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above-named at
Shah Alam in Selangor on 11 June 2020		

)
)

____________________________________________
TAN CHIEW LAN
(MIA No: 40149)
Before me,

____________________________________________
COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD
Registration No.: 200301030059 (632479-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD, which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages
41 to 127.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2019, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
1.

Impairment of Goodwill on consolidation, intellectual property, property, plant and equipment.
(a) Impairment of Goodwill on consolidation
The Group’s Goodwill on consolidation amounted to RM319,598 arising from the acquisition of 65% equity interest of
Kaapagam Technologies Sdn. Bhd. (“KTSB”) as disclosed in Notes 13 (b) to the financial statements is subjected to
annual impairment test in accordance to MFRS 136, Impairment of Assets.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (cont’d)
Registration No.: 200301030059 (632479-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
1.

Impairment of Goodwill on consolidation, intellectual property, property, plant and equipment. (cont’d)
(b) Impairment of intellectual property and property, plant and equipment:
According to paragraph 9 of MFRS 136, Impairment of Assets, the Group shall assess at the end of each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the
recoverable amount of the asset for impairment assessment.

		

(i)

Impairment of intellectual property
The Company acquired the Intellectual Property which has finite useful life through the acquisition of the 65%
equity interest of KTSB for a cash consideration of RM433,108 which was reflected in Note 13 (a) of financial
statements as the cost of the IP. The carrying value of the Intellectual Property as at the financial year end
amounted to RM141,869. Since the Group has reported losses during the current financial year, it has indicated
the existence of impairment.

		

(ii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
In financial year ended 2019, the Group has continued to assess the recoverability of its property, plant and
equipment as the Group continue to report losses for the current financial year which indicated the existence of
impairment. This is disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

In assessing the impairment of these assets, the Directors have compared their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. The asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flow, described as cash-generating units (“CGU”).
The Directors’ assessment of the recoverable amounts is determined by cash flow projections of the respective CGU to
support its value in use calculation. However, the Director has made impairment of the following:
(a) Goodwill on consolidation amounted to RM319,598
(b) Intellectual property amounted to RM141,869
(c) Property, plant and equipment amounted to RM641,998
The cash flow projections of Goodwill, property, plant and equipment and intellectual property are based on assumptions
using management’s estimation and judgement which is inherently uncertain therefore, significant audit risk has been
identified.
Our audit procedures performed includes the following:
(a) made enquiries with the appropriate personnel to evaluate the basis of the cash flow projections.
(b) gained an understanding of the business model that the Directors are pursuing, including obtained evidences based on
past experiences.
(c) evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology used in estimating value-in-use as part of our procedures.
(d) critically challenged the key estimates and assumptions used including performed sensitivity analysis around the
key drivers of the cash flow projections in particular, the revenue and cost estimation, checked the reliability of the
management past forecast and also verified the discount rate used against independent sources.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (cont’d)
Registration No.: 200301030059 (632479-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
1.

Impairment of Goodwill on consolidation, intellectual property, property, plant and equipment. (cont’d)
(e) evaluated the disclosures made in the notes to the financial statements, including the judgements and the uncertainties.
(f) discussed the issues relating to the impairment assessment with the Directors.

2.

Impairment of Investment in subsidiaries
The carrying amounts of investment in Efficient International Sdn. Bhd. (“EI”) amounting to RM5,400,000 and the Company’s
capital contribution of RM5,000,000 to Vigilant Asia (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“VAM”) as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements,
are lower than the net tangible assets of the respective subsidiaries which indicate the existence of impairment.
In assessing the impairment of investment in subsidiaries, the Directors have compared their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts. The investments’ recoverable amounts are the higher of the investments’ fair value less costs to sell
and their value-in-use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the investments are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows, described as cash-generating units (“CGU”).
The Directors’ assessment of the recoverable amounts of investment in subsidiaries are based on their fair value less costs
to sell. The Directors have made impairment of the Investment in subsidiaries amounting to RM9,418,364.
The investments’ fair value less costs to sell are based on assumptions using management’s estimation and judgement
which is inherently uncertain.
Our audit procedures performed includes the following:
(a) gained an understanding of the business model that the Directors are pursuing, including obtained evidences based on
past experiences.
(b) made enquiries to evaluate the basis of use of net asset value as approximate its fair value.
(c) evaluated the appropriateness of the measurement method used to determine the fair value of underlying assets of the
investment.
(d) evaluated the disclosures made in the notes to the financial statements, including the judgements and the uncertainties.
(e) discussed the issues relating to the impairment assessment with the Directors.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Audit Committee Report, Corporate Governance Overview Statement and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control,
Sustainability Report and Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and
our auditors’ report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (cont’d)
Registration No.: 200301030059 (632479-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon (cont’d)
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD (cont’d)
Registration No.: 200301030059 (632479-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and of the
Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act,
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the contents of this report.

PKF 		
AF 0911
		
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Kuala Lumpur
11 June 2020
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NGU SIOW PING
03033/11/2021 J
		CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

			
Group				 Company
								 Restated
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
Note
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Revenue
3
3,956,878		
3,744,959		
922,288		
Cost of sales		
(2,346,831)		
(2,688,843)		
-		
								
Gross profit		
1,610,047		
1,056,116		
922,288		
Other operating income		
3,520,284		
3,677,737		
1,572,041		
Administrative and operating expenses		
(12,907,640)		
(12,579,410)		
(2,634,643)		
Impairment of non-financial assets		
(1,103,465)		
(594,577)		
(9,418,364)		
Loss allowance on financial assets		
(3,683)		
-		
(300,635)		
								
Loss from operations		
(8,884,457)		
(8,440,134)		
(9,859,313)		
Finance cost		
(1,784)		
(5,123)		
-		
Share of profit of associates, net of tax		
569,502		
803,416		
-		
								
Loss before taxation		
(8,316,739)		
(7,641,841)		
(9,859,313)		
Tax (expenses)/income
5
(11,121)		
(14,266)		
2,400		
								
Total comprehensive loss for the financial
year		
(8,327,860)		
(7,656,107)		
(9,856,913)		
								
Total comprehensive loss attributable to:								
Owners of the parent		
(8,264,242)		
(7,589,698)		
(9,856,913)		
Non-controlling interest		
(63,618)		
(66,409)		
-		
								
		
(8,327,860)		
(7,656,107)		
(9,856,913)		
								
Basic loss attributable to owners of the
Company per Ordinary Shares (sen)
6
(1.17)		
(1.07)				

954,494
954,494
1,824,366
(3,254,438)
(475,578)
(475,578)
2,656
(472,922)
(472,922)
(472,922)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

							
Group
						
2019		
2018
					Note
RM		
RM
ASSETS								
Non-current assets								
Property, plant and equipment				
7
27,941,833		
29,812,564
Investment properties				
8
40,361,433		
41,036,489
Investment in associates				
10
5,839,048		
6,139,546
Right of-use-asset				
11
78,707		
Other investments				
12
150,000		
150,000
Intangible assets				
13
-		
603,337
					
				
Current assets				
Trade receivables 				
14
Non-trade receivables, deposits and prepayments			
15
Other investments				
12
Deposits with licensed banks				
17
Tax recoverable					
Cash and bank balances					

74,371,021		

77,741,936

1,238,657		
894,290		
8,090,037		
44,254,842		
61,652		
3,076,269		

649,301
1,030,302
8,196,240
48,340,333
112,683
3,409,215

					

57,615,747		

61,738,074

TOTAL ASSETS					

131,986,768		

139,480,010

18
19

75,546,598		
53,857,603		

75,546,598
62,122,287

Equity attributable to owners of the parent					
Non-controlling interest					

129,404,201		
204,580		

137,668,885
268,198

Total equity					

129,608,781		

137,937,083

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				
Share capital				
Retained earnings				

							

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

							
Group
						
2019		
2018
					Note
RM		
RM
Non-current liabilities								
Deferred tax liabilities				
20		
42,849		
Lease liabilities				
21		
49,215		

79,298
-

						
				
Current liabilities				
Trade payables				
22		
Non-trade payables and accruals				
23		
Contract liabilities				
24		
Lease liabilities				
21		
Tax payable						

92,064		

79,298

233,122		
1,328,923		
683,451		
30,477		
9,950		

34,814
1,181,738
236,732
10,345

						

2,285,923		

1,463,629

Total liabilities						

2,377,987		

1,542,927

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES						

131,986,768		

139,480,010

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

						
						
				
31.12.2019		
		
Note		
RM		

Company
Restated		
31.12.2018		
RM		

Restated
1.1.2018
RM

ASSETS								
Non-current assets								
Property, plant and equipment		
7
187,717		
238,174		
289,696
Investment in subsidiaries		
9
100,059,345		 106,450,791		 103,924,071
Investment in associates		
10
1,800,000		
1,800,000		
1,800,000
Other investments		
12
150,000		
150,000		
150,000
			
102,197,062		 108,638,965		
				
Current assets						
Non-trade receivables, deposits and prepayments
15
116,210		
256,413		
Amount due from subsidiaries 		
16
3,866,521		
3,277,581		
Tax recoverable			
56,000		
75,830		
Other investments		
12
8,090,037		
8,196,240		
Deposits with licensed banks		
17
39,129,552		
42,951,263		
Cash and bank balances			
1,990,947		
1,910,177		

1,261,449
4,254,815
64,534
8,728,017
43,445,207
1,829,210

			

56,249,267		

56,667,504		

59,583,232

TOTAL ASSETS			

155,446,329		

165,306,469		

165,746,999

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES						
Share capital		
18
75,546,598		
75,546,598		
Retained earnings		
19
79,712,266		
89,569,179		

75,546,598
90,042,101

Equity attributable to owners of the parent			

165,115,777		

165,588,699

Total equity			
155,258,864		
165,115,777		
					
							

165,588,699

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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155,258,864		

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

						 Company
						
Restated		
				
31.12.2019		
31.12.2018		
		
Note		
RM		
RM		

Restated
1.1.2018
RM

Non-current liability						
Deferred tax liabilities		
20
8,800		
11,200		

13,856

						
Current liability						
Non-trade payables and accruals		
23
178,665		
179,492		

144,444

Total liabilities			

187,465		

190,692		

158,300

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			

155,446,329		

165,306,469		

165,746,999

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

										
							
Share
Retained		
							
capital
earnings
Total
							
RM
RM
RM

Non-		
controlling
Total
interest
equity
RM
RM

Group										
At 1 January 2018				
75,546,598
69,711,985 145,258,583
334,607 145,593,190
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year		
(7,589,698)
(7,589,698)
(66,409)
(7,656,107)
At 31 December 2018				
Adoption of MFRS 16				
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year		

75,546,598
-

62,122,287 137,668,885
(442)
(442)
(8,264,242)
(8,264,242)

268,198 137,937,083
(442)
(63,618)
(8,327,860)

At 31 December 2019				
		

75,546,598

53,857,603

204,580

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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129,404,201

129,608,781

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont’d)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

				
Non				
distributable
					
Share
					
capital
				
Note
RM

Distributable		
Retained		
earnings
Total
RM
RM

Company
									
At 1 January 2018						
- As previously stated				 75,546,598
89,742,041
165,288,639
- Prior year adjustments			
31
300,060
300,060
						
Restated as at 1 January 2018				 75,546,598
90,042,101
165,588,699
					
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year			
(1,372,922)
(1,372,922)
- Prior year adjustments			
31
900,000
900,000
						
Restated loss and other comprehensive loss for the financial year		
(472,922)
(472,922)
Restated as at 31 December 2018				
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year			

75,546,598
-

89,569,179
(9,856,913)

165,115,777
(9,856,913)

At 31 December 2019				

75,546,598

79,712,266

155,258,864

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

			
Group				 Company
								 Restated
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
Note
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax:		
(8,316,739)		
(7,641,841)		
(9,859,313)		
Adjustments for:								
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment		
1,789,446
2,196,220		
50,457		
Depreciation of investment properties		
681,294
800,917		
-		
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets		
19,609		
-		
-		
Amortisation of intangible assets		
141,870
146,869		
-		
Fair value loss on fair value through
profit or loss financial assets		
242,700
704,902		
242,700		
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
111,681
215		
-		
Written off of investment properties		
812		
-		
Loss allowance on amount due from a subsidiary		
-		
-		
300,635		
Impairment on investment in subsidiaries		
-		
-		
9,418,364		
Impairment on trade receivables		
3,683		
16,372		
-		
Impairment on property, plant and equipment		
641,998		
594,577		
-		
Impairment of goodwill		
319,598		
-		
-		
Impairment of intangible asset		
141,869		
-		
-		
Dividend income		
(52,288)
(54,494)		
(922,288)		
Interest income		
(1,621,707)
(1,781,415)		
(1,434,271)		
Interest expense		
1,784		
-		
-		
Hire purchase interest		
5,123		
-		
Investment income from investment securities		
(137,770)
(174,633)		
(137,770)		
Share of profit of associates, net of tax		
(569,502)
(803,416)		
-		
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables
(5,506)		
-		
-		

704,902
(954,494)
(1,618,159)
(174,633)
-

Operating loss before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables		
Increase/(Decrease) in payables		

(6,607,980)		
(451,521)		
792,212		

(5,989,792)		
1,279,334		
(449,937)		

(2,341,486)		
140,203		
(827)		

(2,466,440)
1,005,036
35,048

Cash used in operations		
Tax refunded		
Tax paid		

(6,267,289)		
58,669		
(55,603)		

(5,160,395)		
31,034		
(97,639)		

(2,202,110)		
19,830		
-		

(1,426,356)
8,534
(19,830)

Net cash used in operating activities		

(6,264,223)		

(5,227,000)		

(2,182,280)		

(1,437,652)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(475,578)
51,522
-

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

			
Group				 Company
								 Restated
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
Note
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Cash flows from investing activities								
Investment in subsidiaries		
-		
-		
-		
Deemed investments – capital contributions		
-		
-		
(3,327,553)		
Dividend income		
52,288		
54,494		
52,288		
Interest from deposits with licensed banks		
1,621,707		
1,781,415		
1,434,271		
Increase in investment securities		
(136,497)		
(173,125)		
(136,497)		
Investment income from investment securities		
137,770		
174,633		
137,770		
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment		
23,001		
2,359		
-		
Dividend income from an associate		
870,000		
900,000		
870,000		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 		
(695,395)		
(1,591,730)		
-		
Purchase of investment properties		
(6,238)		
(160,900)		
-		
Placement of fixed deposits with a licensed bank		
(22,226,812)		
-		
(22,194,641)		
Net cash from investing activities		

(20,360,176)		

987,146		

(23,164,362)		

(499,998)
(2,026,722)
54,494
1,618,159
(173,125)
174,633
900,000
47,441

Cash flows from financing activities								
(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from
subsidiaries		
-		
-		
(588,940)		
Repayment of hire purchase		
-		
(325,486)		
-		
Repayment of lease liabilities		
(19,066)		
-		
-		
Placement of pledged fixed deposit 		
(215,000)		
(850,000)				
Interest paid		
(1,784)		
(5,123)		
-		

977,234
-

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities		

(235,850)		

(1,180,609)		

(588,940)		

977,234

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January		

(26,860,249)		
50,899,548		

(5,420,463)		
56,320,011		

(25,935,582)		
44,861,440		

(412,977)
45,274,417

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December (i)

24,039,299		

50,899,548		

18,925,858		

44,861,440

-

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Notes:
Group
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
					
						
Deposits with a licensed bank (Note 17)				
Bank balances					

2019		
RM		

2018
RM

3,076,269
44,254,842

3,409,215
48,340,333

								
Less: Fixed deposit more than 3 months				

47,331,111
(23,291,812)

51,749,548
(850,000)

								

24,039,299

50,899,548

Company
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
					
						
Deposits with a licensed bank (Note 17)				
Bank balances					

2018
RM

39,129,552
1,990,947

42,951,263
1,910,177

								
Less: Fixed deposit more than 3 months				

41,120,499
(22,194,641)

44,861,440
-

								

18,925,858

44,861,440

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Notes: (cont’d)
(ii) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
		 1		 Adoption
31
		
January 2019
Cash flows
of MFRS 16 December 2019
		
RM
RM		RM
Group 						
Lease liabilities
(19,066)

98,758

79,692

		 1		 Non-cash
31
		
January 2018
Cash flows
acquisition
December 2018
		
RM
RM		RM
Group 						
Borrowings					
- hire purchase liabilities		
325,486
(325,486)
-

-

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2016 in Malaysia.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Group and the Company will continue as
going concerns which contemplates the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.
These financial statements are presented in the Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
(a) Standards issued and effective
On 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company have adopted the following amended MFRSs issued by the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) which are mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019:

							
Effective for
							
annual periods
							
beginning on
		Description					 or after
•

•
•
•
•
•

Annual improvements to MFRSs 2015 - 2017 cycle
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations			
Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements				
Amendments to MFRS 112, Income Taxes				
Amendments to MFRS 123, Borrowing Costs				
Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement					
MFRS 16, Leases					
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation					
Amendments to MFRS 128, Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures			
IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments			

1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019

Adoption of above amended MFRSs did not have any material impact to the financial performances or positions of the Group
and of the Company except for changes in accounting policies as disclosed in Note 1(c) to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(b) Standards issued and effective but has not been adopted
The Group and the Company have not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but
not yet effective:

							
Effective for
							
annual periods
							
beginning on
		Description					 or after
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment				
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations				
Amendments to MFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources		
Amendments to MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts			
Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements			
Amendments to MFRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors					
Amendments to MFRS 134, Interim Financial Reporting			
Amendments to MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets		
Amendments MFRS 138, Intangible Assets				
MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts					
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128 Investment
in Associate and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture					
Amendments to IC Interpretation 12, Service Concession Arrangements			
Amendments to IC Interpretation 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments					
Amendments to IC interpretation 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine					
Amendments to IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration					
Amendments to IC Interpretation 132, Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs		

1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2021
Deferred
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020

The initial application of the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have
any material impacts to the financial statement of the Group and of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(c) Explanation on change in accounting policies
MFRS 16 Leases
In the current financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted MFRS 16 Leases (“MFRS 16”) effective for the
annual financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Group and the Company have elected not to restate
comparatives for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and recognise the cumulative effect of initial applying
MFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.
The Group and the Company have also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at 1 January
2019 (date of initial application). Instead, the Group and the Company relied on their assessment made applying MFRS
117 Leases (“MFRS 117”) and IC Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease for contracts
entered into (or changed) before the date of initial application.
As a lessee
At the date of initial application, for leases previously classified as an operating lease applying MFRS 117, lease
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s and
the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. On 1 January 2019, the weighted average
incremental borrowing rate of the Group and of the Company applied to the lease liabilities are 4.00%.
The right-of-use assets are measured at either:
•
•

their carrying amount as if MFRS 16 has been applied since the commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application; or
an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.

The following practical expedients have been applied to leases previously classified as operating leases applying
MFRS 117:
•
•
•
•
•

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
relied on previous assessment on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to perform impairment review –
there were no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019;
accounted for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as shortterm leases;
excluded initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and
used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

For leases previously classified as finance leases applying MFRS 117, the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
and the lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 are determined to be the same as the carrying amount of the lease assets
and lease liabilities under MFRS 117.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(c) Explanation on change in accounting policies (cont’d)
MFRS 16 Leases (cont’d)
As a lessor
The Group and the Company who are an intermediate lessor reassessed the classification of subleases that previously
classified as operating leases applying MFRS 117 and concluded that the subleases are finance leases under MFRS
16. The subleases are accounted as new finance leases entered into at the date of initial application.
Reconciliation between operating lease commitments disclosed applying MFRS 117 and lease liabilities.
								

2019

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018			

83,700

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019		
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2018			
Adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options		

4.00%
9,800
28,968

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019				

38,768

These are impact on the changes to the accounting policies applied to lease contracts entered into by the Group and
the Company as compared to those applied in previous financial statements. The impact arising from the changes are
disclosed as below.
		
			
					
					
					
					

As reported
at 31
December
2018
RM

Adjustments
Adjusted
due to
Opening
adoption of
balance at
MFRS 16 1 January 2019
RM
RM

Right-of-use asset			

-

38,326

38,326

Lease liabilities			

-

(38,768)

(38,768)

Retained earnings			

(62,122,287)

442

(62,121,845)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(d) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in Note 2 to the
financial statements.
(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the Directors and management and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the Group’s and of the Company’s accounting
policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:
(i)

Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different from
the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and
estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(ii)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortisation of Intellectual Property
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of intellectual property are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.
The Group and the Company anticipate that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment and intellectual
property will be insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation
of the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives
and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
(iii) Leases
(a) Lease term
In determining the lease term, management considers all fact and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or not terminated).
The extension options in leases for building have been included in the lease liability in consideration of the
costs and business disruption required to replace the leased assets.
(b) Incremental borrowing rate of leases
In determining the incremental borrowing rate, the Group and the Company use recent third-party financing
received by the Group and the Company as a starting point and makes adjustments specific to the lease, for
e.g. term and security.
(iv) Impairment of Non-financial Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value in use of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the
present value of those cash flows.
(v)

Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined using
verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation
methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and/or equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
(vi) Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade receivables
The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before the end of the
reporting period and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Group and the Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed at every end of the
reporting period.
(vii) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax rates are measured with reference
to the estimated realisation and settlement of temporary differences in the future periods in which the tax rates
are expected to apply, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting year.
While management’s estimates on the realisation and settlement of temporary differences are based on the
available information at the statements of financial position date, changes in business strategy, future operating
performance and other factors could potentially impact on the actual timing and amount of temporary differences
realised and settled. Any difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which actual realisation and settlement occurs.
(viii) Provision for Liabilities
Provision for liabilities are based on management’s judgement on the likelihood of liabilities crystallising and best
estimates on the amounts required to settle the liabilities arising from legal and constructive obligations. A change
in circumstances which could cause estimates to change include changes in market trends and conditions,
regulatory environment, employees’ behaviours and other factors that may change the amount of provisions in
the statement of financial position. The difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the change occurs.
(ix) Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This requires management
to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated and to apply
a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most
sensitive to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the expectation is different
from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)
(x)

Classification between Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and have developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets
held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as investment property.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group considers it has de-facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting
rights, it has the current ability in circumstances where the size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect
the investee’s return. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are
substantive.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(i)

Subsidiaries (cont’d)
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method on the acquisition date. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of assets transferred, equity interest issued by the Group and liabilities assumed.
Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment
includes transaction costs.

(ii)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•
•
•
•

60

The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
The recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree;
less
The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(ii)

Business combinations (cont’d)
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly
or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit and loss and the other comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even
if doing so caused the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
(iv) Transactions with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby,
transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners.
On acquisition of non-controlling interest, the difference between the consideration and the Group’s share of
the net assets acquired is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to non-controlling interests is
recognised directly in equity.
(v)

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising
on the loss of control is recognised in the profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary,
then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as
equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
(vi) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted associates are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates and jointly controlled entities. Unrealised losses are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(vii) Associate
An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which the Group and the Company has
significant influence. An associate is equity accounted for from the date the Group and the Company obtains
significant influence until the date the Group and the Company ceases to have significant influence over the
associate.
The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in associates is measured in the statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill relating to associates is included in the carrying
amount of the investments. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associates identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the investments is excluded from the carrying amount
of the investments and is instead included as income in the determination of the Group’s share of the associates
profit or loss for the period in which the investment is acquired.
Investments in associates are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses. The cost of investment includes transaction costs.
(b) Foreign currencies
(i)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of the Group and of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which are the Group’s and the Company’s functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currencies (cont’d)
(ii)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Group and of the
Company and its subsidiaries are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the reporting
date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of
the Group’s and of the Company’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency
translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group and of the Company on disposal of the
foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items
are also recognised directly in equity.
The principal exchange rates for every unit of foreign currency ruling used at reporting date are as follows:

								
								

2019
RM

2018
RM

			
			

3.04
4.09

3.03
4.14

1 Singapore Dollar				
1 United States Dollar				
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c) Revenue and other income
(i)

Rendering of services
IT services
The Group provides IT services such as penetration test, cybersecurity assessment and awareness test and
consultation services. There is only one performance obligation at each of the sales contract. The Company
recognises the revenue in a point of time when the services rendered, and based on selling price specified in the
contracts.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of approximately 30 days,
which is consistent with the market practice.
Security monitoring services
The Group involves in security monitoring services which provides 24 hours monitoring services to the customer.
As the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits during the contract period, the revenue is
recognised over time.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with advance payment.
Storage records management
The Group provides a storage record management services based on usage basis requested by the customer.
There are three performance obligations identified in the Company’s sales contract which is storage for active
files, security files and carton of files.
The contract price is variable, which is based on customer’s usage. As the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits during the contract period. As such, the revenue is recognised over time.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of approximately 30 days,
which is consistent with the market practice.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c) Revenue and other income (cont’d)
(i)

Rendering of services (cont’d)
Disaster recovery services, subscription-based income and IT support
Disaster recovery, subscription-based income and IT support are recognised on accrual basis in accordance with
the terms of agreement.
The contract price fixed, which is based on agreed in the agreement. As the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits during the contract period, the revenues are recognised over time.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of approximately 30 days,
which is consistent with the market practice.

(ii)

Sales of goods – manufacturing
The Group manufactures and sells a range of mineral water to local customers. The sales contract identifies the
following services which is manufacturing and delivery of goods. As such, there are two performance obligations
identified in the contract.
As the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the Group transfers control of the goods to the
customer, whereby the goods are delivered to the customer, revenue is also recognised at point in time and based
on the selling price of goods specified in the contract.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is
consistent with the market practice.

(iii) Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of lease.
(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on effective yield on the investment.
(v)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(d) Employee benefits expenses
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the financial year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and of the Company. Short term
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by
employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(ii)

Defined contribution plans
The Group’s and the Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the
period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Company have no further
liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

(e) Borrowing costs
All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs.
Finance costs comprise interest paid and payable on borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
(f)

Tax expense
(i)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(f)

Tax expense (cont’d)
(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise from
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(g) Impairment
(i)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
The Group and the Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss, except
for cash and bank balances. Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit loss.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group and the Company consider reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information, where available.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the asset, which 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the 12-months after the reporting date. The maximum period
considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Group and
the Company are exposed to credit risk.
The Group and the Company estimate the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix
with reference to historical credit loss experience.
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance amount.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group and the Company determine that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Group’s and the Company’s procedures for recovery amounts due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(g) Impairment (cont’d)
(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the
Group and the Company make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGUs”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss
unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

(h) Property, plant and equipment		
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Group and the Company recognise such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Freehold land has an indefinite useful life and therefore is not depreciated.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight line basis, at the following annual rates:
Freehold buildings
Computer and office equipment
Electrical and furniture fittings
Machinery
Motor vehicles
Renovation and signboard

2%
10% - 40%
10% - 20%
10%
10%
10% - 20%

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(i)

Leases
The Group and the Company had applied MFRS 117 Leases until financial year ended 31 December 2018. From 1
January 2019, MFRS 16 Leases has been applied.
Current financial year
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement
As a lessee
The Group and the Company recognised right-of-use asset and lease liability at the commencement date of the
lease.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises as follows:
•
•
•
•

the initial amount of the lease liability;
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
any initial direct costs incurred; and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s and the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
Variable lease payments that do not depends on an index or a rate are excluded from lease liability and right-ofuse asset and recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(i)

Leases (cont’d)
Current financial year (cont’d)
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement (cont’d)
As a lessor
Leases for which the Group and the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Leases which transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset is
a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease.
The Group and the Company recognise assets held under a finance lease in its statement of financial position and
presents them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Initial direct costs, other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors, are included in the initial measurement of the investment in the
lease.
When the Group and the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference to the right- of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described above, then it classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

(ii)

Subsequent measurement
As a lessee
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group and the Company by the
end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group and the Company will exercise
a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In
addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses determined in accordance with Note
2(g) to the financial statements, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(i)

Leases (cont’d)
Current financial year (cont’d)
(ii)

Subsequent measurement (cont’d)
As a lessee (cont’d)
The carrying amount of lease liability is subsequently increased by interest on the lease liability and reduced
by lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in lease term, assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset, future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate, the Group’s and
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee or in-substance
fixed lease payments.
When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-ofuse asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
As a lessor
Finance income from finance leases is recognised over the lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease whereas lease income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Previous financial year
(i)

Classification
A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group and the Company all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in
the same way as leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification. All leases that do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:
-

Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property is
classified as an investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance lease as described in Note 8
to the financial statements; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(i)

Leases (cont’d)
Previous financial year (cont’d)
(i)

Classification (cont’d)
-

(ii)

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under
a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease.

Finance Leases – as Lessee
Assets acquired by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated at an amount equal to the lower of their fair
values and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the leases, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The corresponding liability is in the statements of financial position as
borrowings. In calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor used is the
interest rate implicit in the lease, when it is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate is used. Any initial direct costs are also added to the carrying amounts of such assets.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance
costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets
acquired, are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for the depreciable property, plant and
equipment as described in Note 2(h) to the financial statements.

(iii) Operating Leases – as Lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-front payments made are
allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and the buildings element in proportion to the relative fair values
for leasehold interests in the land element and buildings element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The upfront payment represents prepaid lease payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(i)

Leases (cont’d)
Previous financial year (cont’d)
(iv) Operating Leases – as Lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are presented in the statements of financial position according to the
nature of the assets. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(j)

Investment properties
Investment properties, which are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes), are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Freehold lands have indefinite useful life and therefore not depreciated.
Depreciation on freehold buildings is charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
50 years.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit of loss in the year of
retirement or disposal.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for prospectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(k) Intangible assets
(i)

Goodwill on consolidation
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the
Group’s cash-generating unit that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the cash-generating units may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
cash-generating units, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operation on or after 1 January 2006 are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign
operations and translated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(b) to the financial statements.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments which arose on acquisitions of foreign operation before 1 January 2006 are
deemed to be assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company and are recorded in RM319,598 at the rates
prevailing at the date of acquisition.

(ii)

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition, intangible assets are measured at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(k) Intangible assets (cont’d)
(iii) Amortisation
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available or use. Amortisation is based on the cost
of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets.
The estimated useful live for the other intangible assets are as follows:
Intellectual property

3 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each accounting period and
adjusted, if appropriate.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
(l)

Financial assets
Categories of financial assets are determined on initial recognition and are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group and the Company change their business model for managing financial assets in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change of the
business model.
(i)

Amortised costs
Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The financial assets are
not designated as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial assets are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount except for credit
impaired financial assets where the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(l)

Financial assets (cont’d)
(ii)

Fair value through profit or loss
All financial assets not measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. This includes derivative financial assets (except for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging
instrument). On initial recognition, the Group and the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise. Financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at their fair value. Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the
profit or loss.
All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, are subject to impairment assessment.
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group and
the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, deposits with licensed banks at original maturities not
exceeding three months, short term and other highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(n) Financial liabilities
The categories of financial liabilities at initial recognition are as follows:
(i)

Fair value through profit or loss
Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are derivatives (except for a derivative
that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument), contingent consideration
in a business combination and financial liabilities that are specifically designated into this category upon initial
recognition.
On initial recognition, the Group and the Company may irrevocably designate a financial liability that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at fair value through profit or loss:
(a) if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise;
(b) a group of financial liabilities or assets and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel; or
(c)

if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives and the host is not a financial asset in the scope
of MFRS 9, where the embedded derivative significantly modifies the cash flows and separation is not
prohibited.

Financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their fair value
with gains or losses, including any interest expense are recognised in the profit or loss.
For financial liabilities where it is designated as fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, the Group
and the Company recognise the amount of change in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
change in credit risk in the other comprehensive income and remaining amount of the change in fair value in the
profit or loss, unless the treatment of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(n) Financial liabilities (cont’d)
(ii)

Amortised cost
Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gains or losses
on derecognition are also recognised in the profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
(o) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.
(p) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised from equity in the period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(q) Operating segments
For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services. The
management of the Group regularly reviews the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and
to assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in the Note 26 to
the financial statements, including the factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of
segment information.
(r)

Contract liabilities
Contract liability is recognised when the Group and the Company are obliged to transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the consideration has been received (or the amount is due) from the customers.

(s) Contingencies
(i)

Contingent liabilities
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(ii)

Contingent assets
Where an inflow of economic benefits of an asset is probable where it arises from past events and where existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position but is disclosed
as a contingent asset. When the inflow of benefit is virtually certain, then the related asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

3.

Revenue
The revenue of the Group and of the Company consists of the following:

			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Revenue from contract customers					
Rendering of services
(a)
3,904,590
3,690,465
Dividend income		
52,288
54,494
922,288
						

3,956,878

3,744,959

922,288

54,494
54,494

(a) Disaggregation of revenue
		
Records		
IT
		
Management
services 		
Others		
2018 2019		
RM		
RM		
RM		

Total

Group
Dividend income		
Rendering of services 		

1,221,317

2,475,813

52,288
207,460

52,288
3,904,590

						

1,221,317

2,475,813

259,748

3,956,878

							
Timing of revenue recognition:						
- At a point in time 		
619,999
115,748
735,747
- Overtime			
1,221,317
1,855,814
144,000
3,221,131
						

82

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD

1,221,317

2,475,813

259,748

3,956,878

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

3.

Revenue (cont’d)

(a) Disaggregation of revenue (cont’d)
		
Records		
IT
		
Management
services 		
Others		
2018 2018		
RM		
RM		
RM		
Group							
Dividend income		
54,494
Rendering of services 		
1,294,095
2,270,260
126,110
						

1,294,095

2,270,260

180,604

Total

54,494
3,690,465
3,744,959

							
Timing of revenue recognition:						
- At a point in time 		
539,816
54,884
594,700
- Overtime			
1,294,095
1,730,444
125,720
3,150,259
						
4.

1,294,095

2,270,260

180,604

3,744,959

Employee benefits expenses

			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Salaries and other emoluments		
Defined contribution plan		
Social security contribution		
Other benefits			

3,780,749
432,308
38,830
-

3,200,670
288,568
76,349
-

32,453

21,162

						

4,251,887

3,565,587

32,453

21,162

Directors’ remuneration:					
- salaries and other emoluments		
1,974,000
2,091,000
1,710,000
1,871,000
- defined contribution plan and social security
contribution			
200,891
220,210
200,891
220,210
- fees				
44,000
						

2,174,891

2,355,210

1,910,891

2,091,210
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

5.

Tax expenses/(income)

			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM

Tax expenses							
- current 				
55,098
51,827
- over provision in prior year		
(7,528)
(857)
						
47,570
50,970
Deferred tax (Note 20)					
- current year			
(36,449)
(36,704)
(2,400)

(2,656)

						
Income tax recognised in profit or loss		

-

(36,449)

(36,704)

(2,400)

(2,656)

11,121

14,266

(2,400)

(2,656)

Reconciliation of tax expense
			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM

84

Loss before tax		

(8,316,739)

(7,641,841)

(9,859,313)

(475,578)

Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 24%		
Non-deductible expenses		
Tax losses not recognised 		
Deferred tax assets not recognised		
Share of tax expense of associates		
Tax exempt income		

(1,996,017)
(1,637,303)
2,475,702
1,359,780
(136,680)
(46,833)

(1,834,042)
947,273
131,661
1,056,944
(192,820)
(93,893)

(2,366,235)
142,546
2,475,703
(254,414)

(114,139)
258,390
131,661
(278,568)

						
Over provision of current tax in prior year		

18,649
(7,528)

15,123
(857)

(2,400)
-

(2,656)
-

						

11,121

14,266

(2,400)

(2,656)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

5.

Tax expenses/(income) (cont’d)
Reconciliation of tax expense (cont’d)
The Group has unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances amounting to approximately RM13,993,076 (2018:
RM10,772,365) and RM7,608,908 (2018: RM6,403,477) respectively for set off against future taxable profits.
Effective from year of assessment 2019, the unutilised tax losses can be carried forward for a period of 7 years from year of
assessment 2019 onwards to set off against future taxable profit. However, the unutilised tax losses which arose up to year
of assessment 2019 are to be utilised before the year of assessment 2026.

6.

Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share amount is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

							
Group
						
2019		
						
RM		
Loss attributable to owners of the parent				
			
Number of ordinary shares in issue				
			
Basic loss attributable to owners of the Company per ordinary share (sen)		
			

(8,264,242)
709,130,100
(1.15)

2018
RM
(7,589,698)

709,130,100
(1.07)

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the current and previous financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

7.

Property, plant and equipment
			
Computer
Freehold
Freehold
and office
land
buildings
equipment
2019
RM
RM
RM

Electrical &			
Renovation
furniture		
Motor
and
fittings
Machinery
vehicles
signboard
RM
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

Group
Cost
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals

5,870,392
-

18,361,425
390,183
-

3,610,374
135,747
-

23,742
11,905
-

4,326,022
152,110
-

2,860,614
5,450
(219,550)

754,522
-

35,807,091
695,395
(219,550)

At 31 December

5,870,392

18,751,608

3,746,121

35,647

4,478,132

2,646,514

754,522

36,282,936

Accumulated
depreciation								
At 1 January
1,060,899
2,319,101
6,336
627,330
1,144,634
147,435
5,305,735
Charge for the
financial year
380,268
640,880
6,382
376,474
289,285
96,157
1,789,446
Disposals
(84,868)
(84,868)
At 31 December

-

1,441,167

2,959,981

12,718

1,003,804

1,349,051

243,592

7,010,313

Accumulated

impairment								
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At 1 January/
31 December
Additions

-

94,215
-

627,626

-

594,577
14,372

-

-

688,792
641,998

At 31 December

-

94,215

627,626

-

608,949

-

-

1,330,790

Carrying amount							
At 31 December
5,870,392 17,216,226
158,514
22,929
2,865,379
1,297,463
510,930

27,941,833
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

7.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
			
Computer
Freehold
Freehold
and office
land
buildings
equipment
2018
RM
RM
RM

Electrical &			
Renovation
furniture		
Motor
and
fittings
Machinery
vehicles
signboard
RM
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

Group
Cost								
At 1 January
5,870,392 18,361,425
2,559,136
11,880
4,301,972
2,860,614
255,392 34,220,811
Additions
1,056,688
11,862
24,050
499,130
1,591,730
Disposals
(5,450)
(5,450)
At 31 December

5,870,392

18,361,425

3,610,374

23,742

4,326,022

2,860,614

Accumulated
depreciation						
At 1 January
680,533
1,272,671
3,762
273,112
818,482
Charge for the
financial year
380,366
1,049,306
2,574
354,218
326,152
Disposals
(2,876)
At 31 December

-

1,060,899

2,319,101

6,336

627,330

1,144,634

754,522

35,807,091

63,831

3,112,391

83,604
-

2,196,220
(2,876)

147,435

5,305,735

Accumulated
impairment								
At 1 January
94,215
94,215
Additions
594,577
594,577
At 31 December

-

94,215

-

-

594,577

-

-

688,792

Carrying amount								
At 31 December
5,870,392 17,206,311
1,291,273
17,406
3,104,115
1,715,980
607,087 29,812,564
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

7.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Company				
2019
Cost 					
At 1 January/31 December			

Motor		 Computer
vehicles
equipment
RM		
RM		
504,554

8,000

Total
RM
512,554

Accumulated depreciation					
At 1 January 				
266,380
8,000
274,380
Charge for the financial year			
50,457
50,457
At 31 December 			

316,837

8,000

324,837

					
Carrying amount					
At 31 December 			
187,717
187,717
2018					
Cost 					
At 1 January/31 December			

504,554

8,000

512,554

Accumulated depreciation				
At 1 January 				
215,925
Charge for the financial year			
50,455

6,933
1,067

222,858
51,522

At 31 December 			

8,000

274,380

266,380

					
Carrying amount					
At 31 December 			
238,174
238,174
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

7.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Impairment test for property, plant and equipment
In financial year ended 2019, the Group has continued to assess the recoverability of its property, plant and equipment as
the Group continue to report losses for the current financial year which indicated the existence of impairment.
Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of a Cash-Generating Unit (“CGU”) is determined based on its value in use. The cashflow were
projected based on the 3 years business plan for the water bottling project and cybersecurity segment.
The value in use was determined by discounting the future cashflows expected to be generated from the continued use of
the unit and was based on the following assumptions:
(i)

		
(ii)

Revenue growth
The revenue was projected based on current secured sales and anticipate growth in line with the business plan.
Discount rate
The discount rate used is weighted average cost of capital of the Company. The discount rate applied was 10.90%
(2018: 12.66%) per annum.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and are
based on external and internal sources. A reasonably possible change in a key assumption does not have any significant
difference to the recoverable amount.
Sensitivity to change in assumptions
With regards to the assessment of the value-in-use of the CGU relating to water bottling and cybersecurity, management
believes there are possible changes in key assumptions which could cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its
recoverable amount. Based on the assessment, there is a shortfall of RM641,998 (2018: RM594,577) which it is impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

8.

Investment properties

2019

Freehold		
Freehold				
lands		
buildings		
Total
RM		
RM		
RM

Group					
Cost 					
At 1 January				
Additions					

18,462,791
-

32,358,003
6,238

50,820,794
6,238

At 31 December 			

18,462,791

32,364,241

50,827,032

					
Accumulated depreciation					
At 1 January				
9,784,305
9,784,305
Charge for the financial year			
681,294
681,294
At 31 December			

-

10,465,599

10,465,599

					
Carrying amount					
At 31 December			
18,462,791
21,898,642
40,361,433

Fair value 				
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38,442,738

33,495,878

71,938,616

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

8.

Investment properties (cont’d)

2018

Freehold		
Freehold				
lands		
buildings		
Total
RM		
RM		
RM

Group					
Cost 					
At 1 January				
Additions					
Disposal					

18,462,791
-

32,197,957
160,900
(854)

50,660,748
160,900
(854)

At 31 December 			

18,462,791

32,358,003

50,820,794

					
Accumulated depreciation					
At 1 January				
8,983,430
8,983,430
Charge for the financial year			
800,917
800,917
Disposal					
(42)
(42)
At 31 December			

-

9,784,305

9,784,305

Carrying amount					
At 31 December			
18,462,791
22,573,698
41,036,489
Fair value 				

38,442,738

38,977,088

77,419,826

Investment properties comprise commercial lands. The investment properties are held for capital appreciation and generate
rental income through letting of investment properties.
The fair value has been determined based on valuations. Valuations of certain properties of the Group are performed by
independent valuers and the fair value of remaining properties are estimated by the Directors based on the comparison
method that refers to market values of similar properties in the open market. During the financial year, rental income
generated from the investment properties amounted to RM1,680,513 (2018: RM1,556,974). The rental cost incurred during
the year amounted to RM264,919 (2018: RM198,509).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

9.

Investment in subsidiaries

		Company
				
2019
				
RM

2018
RM

Unquoted shares, at cost			
At 1 January 					
Additions						

7,400,006
-

6,900,008
499,998

								

7,400,006

7,400,006

Deemed investment: capital contribution				
At 1 January 					
Additions						

99,050,785
3,026,918

97,024,063
2,026,722

102,077,703

99,050,785

9,418,364

-

At 31 December 				

9,418,364

-

At 31 December 				

100,059,345

106,450,791

								
			
Less: Impairment 			
		
At 1 January				
		
Addition					
		

All the subsidiary companies are incorporated in Malaysia and their details are as follows:
		
		
Name of subsidiaries

Percentage of
equity held (%)
2019
2018

Efficient International Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
			
Efficient Storage Solutions Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
			
Efficient Storage Solutions (Techpark)
100
100
Sdn. Bhd			
Livingston Education Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
Efficient Digital Esplanade Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
Efficient GlobalIT Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
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Principal activities
Investment holding company and outsourcing services
in the area of payroll and programme management.
Property investment and document archiving and
related services.
Property investment and document archiving and
related services.
Dormant.
Dormant.
IT System integration, shared and support and any
other IT related services.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

9.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
		
		
Name of subsidiaries

Percentage of
equity held (%)
2019
2018

Efficient RE Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
			
Vigilant Asia Group Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
Vigilant Asia (M) Sdn. Bhd.
100
100
			
			
			
Kaapagam Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
65
65
			
			
			

Principal activities
Property investment and document archiving and
related services.
Investment holding company.
Computer and information technology related
business including IT security and consultation
services, software development and IT related
training.
Computer and information technology related
business including consultancy, penetration test on
server
and
web
applications,
vulnerability
assessment.

All subsidiaries are audited by PKF Malaysia.
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
The Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”) are as follows:
			
				

2019
RM

2018
RM

Kaapagam Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest			
Carrying amount of NCI				

35%
204,580

35%
268,198

Loss allocated to NCI				

(63,618)

(66,409)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

9.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination:

			
				

2019
RM

2018
RM

Kaapagam Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
At 31 December			
Current assets					
Current liabilities				

98,930
(187,238)

247,699
(139,115)

Net (liabilities)/assets				

(88,308)

108,584

Financial year ended 31 December			
Revenue						
Loss for the financial year				
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year			

316,095
(181,766)
(181,766)

621,720
(189,740)
(189,740)

Cash flows used in operating activities				
Cash flows used in investing activities				
Cash flows used in financing activities				

(76,274)
(13,772)
(12,000)

(200,684)
(19,488)
(24,812)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents				

(102,046)

(244,984)

Impairment test for investment in subsidiaries
In financial year ended 2019, the Company has assessed the recoverability of its investment in subsidiaries as the subsidiaries
continue to report losses for the current financial year which indicated the existence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

9.

Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Impairment test for investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of a Cash-Generating Unit (“CGU”) is determined based on its value in use. The cashflow were
projected based on the 3 years business plan for the cybersecurity segment. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
The value in use was determined by discounting the future cashflows expected to be generated from the continued use of
the unit and was based on the following assumptions:
(iii) Revenue growth

		

The revenue was projected based on current secured sales and anticipate growth in line with the business plan.

(iv) Discount rate
The discount rate used is weighted average cost of capital of the Company. The discount rate applied was 10.90%
(2018: 12.66%) per annum.
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and are
based on external and internal sources. A reasonably possible change in a key assumption does not have any significant
difference to the recoverable amount.
Sensitivity to change in assumptions
With regards to the assessment of the value-in-use of the CGU relating to investment in subsidiaries management believes
there are possible changes in key assumptions which could cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount. Based on the assessment, the management has impaired the shortfall of RM9,418,364 in respect of investment in
Efficient International Sdn Bhd of RM5,400,000 and the capital contribution to Vigilant Asia (M) Sdn Bhd of RM5,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

10. Investment in associates
			
Group				 Company
								 Restated
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Unquoted shares, at cost						
At 1 January			
1,800,000
1,800,000
1,499,940
1,499,940
Prior year adjustment (Note 31)		
300,060
300,060
At 31 December (Restated)		
1,800,000
1,800,000
1,800,000
Share of results of associates		
6,109,108
5,539,606
Less: Dividend 					

1,800,000
-

At 1 January (before restated)		
Declared during the year		

(1,200,060)
(870,000)

(300,060)
(900,000)

-

-

At 31 December (after restated)		

(2,070,060)

(1,200,060)

-

-

5,839,048

6,139,546

1,800,000

1,800,000

						

All the associate companies are incorporated in Malaysia and their details are as follows:
		
		
Name of associates
Regalia Records Management Sdn. Bhd.#
#
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Percentage of
equity held (%)
2019
2018
30

30

Audited by a firm of chartered accountants other than PKF.
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Principal activities
Provision of document archiving and related services.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

10. Investment in associates (cont’d)
The following table summarises the information of the Group’s material associate:
			
				

2019
RM

2018
RM

Regalia Records Management Sdn. Bhd.			
Assets and liabilities			
Non-current assets 				
Current assets					

19,057,171
6,191,842

18,518,173
8,170,005

Total assets					

25,249,013

26,688,178

			
Non-current liabilities				
Current liabilities				

3,254,034
1,788,905

3,720,747
1,745,062

Total liabilities					

5,042,939

5,465,809

			
Results			
Revenue						
Profit for the year				

14,222,380
2,046,944

16,239,644
2,550,023

11. Right-of-use asset
					
					

Building
RM

Carrying amount			
At 1 January						
Initial application of MFRS 16					
Depreciation for the financial year					

98,316
(19,609)

At 31 December					

78,707

The Group leases a building. The contract term is 2 years that may come together with an extension options of renewal of
contract for 2 years.
The extension and termination options were commonly exercisable only by the company and not by the respective lessor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

12. Other investments
								
								
Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Golf and country club membership, at cost				
Unquoted shares, at cost				
Impairment					
			
Financial assets at amortised cost			
Unquoted shares, at cost				
Impairment					
								

98

Group and Company
2019		
2018
RM		
RM

150,000

150,000

5,000,000
(5,000,000)

5,000,000
(5,000,000)

4,750,000
(4,750,000)

4,750,000
(4,750,000)

-

-

Total							

150,000

150,000

			
Current			
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted shares:			
Inside Malaysia				
Outside Malaysia				

1,170,000
276,259

1,297,500
391,714

								

1,446,259

1,689,214

Fixed income trust fund				

6,643,778

6,507,026

Total							

8,090,037

8,196,240

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

13. Intangible assets
							
Group
						
2019		
						
RM		

2018
RM

Intellectual property				
Goodwill on consolidation				

-

283,739
319,598

At 31 December				

-

603,337

(a) Intellectual property
							
Group
						
2019		
						
RM		

2018
RM

		Cost			
		
At 1 January/31 December				

433,108

433,108

		Accumulated amortisation			
		
At 1 January				
		
Charge during the financial year				

149,369
141,870

2,500
146,869

		

At 31 December 				

291,239

149,369

			
		
Accumulated impairment losses			
		
At 1 January				
		
Impairment during the financial year				

141,869

-

		

At 31 December				

141,869

-

		Carrying amount			
		
At 31 December				

-

283,739
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

13. Intangible assets (cont’d)
(b) Goodwill on consolidation
							
Group
						
2019		
						
RM		

2018
RM

		At cost
		
At 1 January				
		
Less: Impairment				

391,391
(71,793)

		

At 31 December				

		

Impairment test for goodwill and intellectual property

319,598
(319,598)
-

319,598

Goodwill and intellectual property arising from the acquisition had been allocated to the Group’s operating divisions
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill and intellectual property is monitored for internal
management purposes.
		

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of a Cash-Generating Unit (“CGU”) is determined based on its value in use. The cashflow
were projected based on the 3 years business plan of the Group.
The value in use was determined by discounting the future cashflows expected to be generated from the continued use
of the unit and was based on the following assumptions:

		(v)

Revenue growth
The revenue was projected based on current secured sales.

		(vi) Discount rate
The discount rate used is weighted average cost of capital of the Company. The discount rate applied was 10.90%
(2018: 12.66%) per annum.
		

Sensitivity to change in assumptions
With regards to the assessment of the value-in-use of the CGU relating to cybersecurity, management believes there
are no possible changes which can change the outcome of their assessment. Based on the assessment, there is a
shortfall of RM461,467 which is impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

14. Trade receivables
The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 14 to 60 days (2018: 14 to 60 days). Other credit terms are assessed and
approved on a case-by-case basis.
							
Group
						
2019		
						
RM		
Amount due from:
Related parties				
Third party 					
Less: Impairment 			
		
At 1 January 				
		
Addition 					
		
Reversal					

552,156
701,050

2018
RM
401,606
264,067

16,372
3,683
(5,506)

16,372
-

At 31 December 				

14,549

16,372

								

1,238,657

649,301

		

Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
15. Non-trade receivables, deposits and prepayments
			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Non-trade receivables		
Deposits 				
Prepayments			
GST refundable		

188,544
153,156
507,223
45,367

264,411
162,719
554,002
49,170

106,042
8,571
1,597
-

245,984
8,571
1,858
-

						

894,290

1,030,302

116,210

256,413

Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

16. Amount due from subsidiaries
		Company
				
2019
				
RM

2018
RM

Non-trade 				
Due from 						
4,167,156
3,277,581
Less: Impairment						
		
		

At 1 January				
Addition					

300,635

-

		

At 31 December				

300,635

-

								
				

3,866,521

3,277,581

The amount due from subsidiaries represents non-trade, unsecured, interest-free advances and is repayable on demand.
Significant related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
17. Deposits with licensed banks
			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Free from encumbrance		

44,254,842

48,340,333

39,129,552

42,951,263

The Group’s and the Company’s deposits with licensed banks at the end of the financial year earn interest between 2.0% to
4.0% (2018: 2.0% to 4.0%) per annum and have maturities of 1 day to 1 year (2018: 1 to 180 days).
			
Group				 Company
		
2019 		
2018		
2019		
2018
		
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM

102

Less than 3 months		
More than 3 months		

20,963,030
23,291,812

47,490,333
850,000

16,934,911
22,194,641

42,951,263
-

						

44,254,842

48,340,333

39,129,552

42,951,263
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

18. Share capital
							
Group and Company
						
2019
2018
2019
						
Number of Ordinary Shares
RM

2018
RM

Issued and fully paid:						
At 1 January/31 December		
709,130,100
709,130,100
75,546,598
75,546,598
The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares
carry one (1) vote per share without restriction and rank equally with regards to the Company’s residual interests.
19. Retained earnings
Under the single tier system introduced by the Finance Act, 2007 in Malaysia which came into effect from the year of
assessment 2008, dividends paid under this system are tax exempt in the hands of shareholders. As such, the whole
retained earnings can be distributed to shareholders as tax exempt dividends.
20. Deferred tax liabilities
		
						
						

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018
RM

At 1 January			
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 5)		

79,298
(36,449)

116,002
(36,704)

11,200
(2,400)

13,856
(2,656)

At 31 December		

42,849

79,298

8,800

11,200
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

20. Deferred tax liabilities (cont’d)
The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as
follows:
							
							
							
							
Deferred tax liabilities of the Group
At 1 January 2019			
Recognised in profit or loss			

Property,
plant and
equipment
RM

Intangible
assets
RM

11,200
(2,400)

68,098
(34,049)

79,298
(36,449)

8,800

34,049

42,849

At 1 January 2018			
Recognised in profit or loss			

13,856
(2,656)

102,146
(34,048)

116,002
(36,704)

At 31 December 2018			

11,200

68,098

79,298

At 31 December 2019			
							

									
									
									
									

Property,
plant and
equipment
RM

Deferred tax liabilities of the Company					
At 1 January 2019					
Recognised in profit or loss					

11,200
(2,400)

At 31 December 2019					

8,800

					
At 1 January 2018					
Recognised in profit or loss					
At 31 December 2018					

104

Total
RM
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13,856
(2,656)
11,200

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

20. Deferred tax liabilities (cont’d)
The amount of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are as follows (stated at gross):
			
								
								

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

Unabsorbed capital allowances				
Unutilised tax losses				

7,608,908
13,993,076

6,403,477
10,772,365

								

21,601,984

17,175,842

									
									
Representing:					

Group
2019
RM

Current 							
Non-current						

30,477
49,215

									

79,692

21. Lease liabilities

The effective interest rate of the said lease liabilities obligations is 4.00% per annum.
Recognised in profit or losses:			
Interest expense (included in finance cost)					

1,784

The total cash outflow for leases for the financial year is RM20,850.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

22. Trade payables
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 60 days (2018: 30 to 60 days).
			
								
Amount due to:				
Third party					

Group

2019
RM
233,122

2018
RM
34,814

23. Non-trade payables and accruals
		
						
						

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018
RM

Non-trade payables		
Deposits received		
Accruals				
SST/GST payable		

221,650
92,000
943,415
71,858

169,175
92,000
890,400
30,163

23,172
155,493
-

31,593
147,899
-

						

1,328,923

1,181,738

178,665

179,492

24. Contract liabilities
			
								
							

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

Contract liabilities 				

683,451

236,732

Recognised in profit or loss			
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the period recognised as revenue		

236,732

82,350

Contract liabilities shows the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as
at the end of the reporting period. Contract liabilities represent the amount of deferred income on service contract for period
over one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

25. Significant related party transactions
(a) Identities of related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Group, if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties could be
individuals or other parties.
Related parties of the Group include:
(i)

Direct and indirect subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements;

(ii)

Key management personnel, which comprises persons (including the Directors of the Group) having authority and
responsibility for planning, deciding and controlling the activities of the Group directly or indirectly; and

(iii) Entities in which certain Directors, who are also the substantial shareholders of the parent, have substantial
shareholding interests.
Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under normal trade terms. The
significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company are shown below:
		
						
					
RM
		Associates
		
Provision of document archiving and
		
related services to the associate company
		
Provision of IT services to the associate
		
company		
		
Provision of documents archiving from
		
the associate company		
		
Provision of IT hardware to associate
		
company		
		
Water bottling sales 		

2019
RM

Group

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018

1,221,317

1,294,095

-

-

312,000

276,000

-

-

2,400

2,400

-

-

21,760
6,900

3,500

-

-

							

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD

107

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

25. Significant related party transactions (cont’d)
		
						
					
RM

Group

2019
RM

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018

		Subsidiaries
		
Advances			
		
Payment on behalf		
		
Settlement		
		
Capitalisation of loan		

-

-

4,000,000
26,918
129,593
-

2,000,000
1,296,431
1,644,611
499,998

		Related Parties
		
Hotel services		
		
IT services		
		
Water bottling		
		
Training 			
		
Purchase of assets		
		
Security services		

4,223
1,064,880
48,189
5,000
132,876

1,056,000
57,002
5,774
-

-

-

The Directors are of the opinion that the terms and conditions and prices of the above transactions are not materially
different from that obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties.
Significant balances with related parties are disclosed in Note 14, 15 and 16 to the financial statements.
(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel
		
						
		 				
		

Short-term employee benefits 		

2019
RM
2,174,891

Group

2018
RM
2,335,210

2019
RM

Company

1,910,891

2018
RM

2,091,210

Key management personnel comprise executive and non-executive directors of the Group and of the Company who
have authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the Group and of the Company,
directly or indirectly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

26. Segment information
(a) Business segments
The Group is organised into three major business segments in the current year:
(i) Records Management;
(ii) IT Services; and
(iii) Others.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
for the financial year, in certain respects as set out below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements.
Major Customer
The following are major customers with revenue equal or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue:
		
		
Revenue
Segment
						
2019
2018
						
RM
RM
		
		
		

All common control companies of:				
- Customer A		
1,221,317
1,294,095
- Customer B		
1,056,000
1,056,000

Records management
IT services
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

26. Segment information (cont’d)
(a) Business segments (cont’d)

110

			
		
Group		
2019		
2019		

Records
Management
RM

IT
services
RM

		Revenue
		
- At a point in time 		
		
- Over time 		

1,221,317

619,999
1,855,814

115,748
144,000

-

735,747
3,221,131

		

1,221,317

2,475,813

259,748

-

3,956,878

Total revenue		

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

		Results
		
Segment results		
		
Interest income		
		
Share of profit of associates, net of tax

(1,128,170)
33,905
-

(4,692,725) (12,882,992)
76,841
1,510,961
569,502

8,195,939
-

(10,507,948)
1,621,707
569,502

		

Loss before taxation		

(1,094,265)

(4,615,884) (10,802,529)

8,195,939

(8,316,739)

		

Tax expenses						

(11,121)

		

Net loss for the year						

(8,327,860)

		
		
		

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company						
Non-controlling interest 						

(8,264,242)
(63,618)

									

(8,327,860)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

26. Segment information (cont’d)
(a) Business segments (cont’d)
			
		
Group		
2019		
2019		

Records
Management
RM

IT
services
RM

		
		
		

Net asset
Segment assets		
Associates		

32,572,012
-

8,025,073 208,395,609 (118,805,927)
1,800,000
-

130,186,767
1,800,000

		

Total assets		

32,572,012

8,025,073 210,195,609 (118,805,927)

131,986,767

		

Addition to non-current assets		

542,293

115,316

1,012,340

		
		

Segment liabilities		
Tax liabilities		

1,198,301
-

3,180,866
-

2,705,743
8,800

(4,749,772)
34,049

2,335,138
42,849

		

Total liabilities		

1,198,301

3,180,866

2,714,543

(4,715,723)

2,377,987

		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

Other information
Capital expenditure		
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment		
Depreciation of Investment properties
Amortisation of Intangible assets		
Impairment of property, plant
and equipment		

364,182

115,516

222,135

(200)

701,633

370,158
235,171
-

690,577
-

717,053
414,117
-

11,658
32,006
141,869

1,789,446
681,294
141,869

-

627,626

14,372

-

641,998

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

-

1,669,949
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

26. Segment information (cont’d)
(a) Business segments (cont’d)
			
		
Group		
2019		
2018		

Records
Management
RM

IT
services
RM

		Revenue
		
- At a point in time		
		
- Over time		

1,294,095

539,816
1,730,444

54,884
125,720

-

594,700
3,150,259

		

1,294,095

2,270,260

180,604

-

3,744,959

Total revenue		

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

									
		Results
		
Segment results		
(1,073,726) (3,939,771) (4,281,225)
(931,950)
(10,226,672)
		
Interest income		
36,252
64,950
1,680,213
1,781,415
		
Share of profit of associates, net of tax
803,416
803,416
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Loss before taxation		

(931,950)

(7,641,841)

		

Tax expenses						

(14,266)

		

Net loss for the year						

(7,656,107)

		

Loss attributable to:								

		
		

Owners of the Company						
Non-controlling interest 						

(7,589,698)
(66,409)

									

(7,656,107)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD

(1,037,474)

(3,874,821)

(1,797,596)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

26. Segment information (cont’d)
(a) Business segments (cont’d)
			
		
Group		
2019		
2018		

Records
Management
RM

IT
services
RM

		
		
		

Net asset
Segment assets		
Associates		

35,666,428
-

8,725,685 217,198,285 (122,710,328)
599,940
-

138,880,070
599,940

		

Total assets		

35,666,428

8,725,685 217,798,225 (122,710,328)

139,480,010

		

Addition to non-current assets		

17,750

1,546,678

1,088,202

		
		

Segment liabilities		
Tax liabilities		

828,790
-

2,491,801
-

1,636,199
11,200

(3,493,161)
68,098

1,463,629
79,298

		

Total liabilities		

828,790

2,491,801

1,647,399

(3,425,063)

1,542,927

Others
RM

Elimination Consolidated
RM
RM

-

2,652,630

									
		
Other information
		
Capital expenditure		
76,194
1,546,679
129,758
1,752,631
		
Depreciation of property, plant
		
and equipment		
393,040
1,087,892
669,189
46,099
2,196,220
		
Depreciation of Investment properties
247,289
404,223
149,405
800,917
		
Amortisation of Intangible assets		
5,000
141,869
146,869
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of the categories of financial instruments categorised as follows:
(a) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
(b) Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (“AC”).
							
							
Group					

Carrying
amount
RM

FVTPL
RM

AC
RM

2019
Financial assets					
Trade receivables			
1,238,657
1,238,657
Non-trade receivables and deposits (excluding prepayments)		
387,067
387,067
Other investments			
8,090,037
8,090,037
Deposits with licensed banks			
44,254,842
44,254,842
Cash and bank balances			
3,076,269
3,076,269
							

57,046,872

8,090,037

48,956,835

Financial liabilities					
Trade payables			
233,122
233,122
Non-trade payables and accruals			
1,328,923
1,328,923
Lease liabilities			
79,692
79,692
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1,641,737

-

1,641,737

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
							
							
Company				

Carrying
amount
RM

FVTPL
RM

AC
RM

2019					
Financial assets					
Non-trade receivables and deposits (excluding prepayments)		
114,613
114,613
Amount due from subsidiaries			
6,866,522
6,866,522
Other investments			
8,240,037
8,240,037
Deposits with licensed banks			
39,129,552
39,129,552
Cash and bank balances			
1,990,946
1,990,946
							

56,341,670

8,240,037

48,101,633

					
Financial liability					
Non-trade payables and accruals			
178,665
178,665
							
							
Group					

Carrying
amount
RM

FVTPL
RM

AC
RM

2018					
Financial assets					
Trade receivables			
649,301
649,301
Non-trade receivables and deposits (excluding prepayments)		
476,300
476,300
Other investments			
8,196,240
8,196,240
Deposits with licensed banks			
48,340,333
48,340,333
Cash and bank balances			
3,409,215
3,409,215
							

61,071,389

8,196,240

52,875,149

Financial liabilities					
Trade payables			
34,814
34,814
Non-trade payables and accruals			
1,181,738
1,181,738
							

1,216,552

-

1,216,552
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Categories of financial instruments (cont’d)
							
							
Company				

Carrying
amount
RM

FVTPL
RM

AC
RM

2018					
Financial assets					
Non-trade receivables and deposits (excluding prepayments)		
254,555
254,555
Amount due from subsidiaries			
3,277,581
3,277,581
Other investments			
8,196,240
8,196,240
Deposits with licensed banks			
42,951,263
42,951,263
Cash and bank balances			
1,910,177
1,910,177
							

56,589,816

8,196,240

48,393,576

					
Financial liability					
Non-trade payables and accruals			
179,492
179,492
Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
Group
2019							
Net gains/(losses) arising from:
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income 					
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables 				
Impairment loss on trade receivables					

1,621,707
5,506
(3,683)

Fair value through profit or loss
Investment income from investment securities				
Fair value (loss)/gain on fair value through profit or loss on financial assets			
Dividend income					

137,770
(242,700)
52,288

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities interest					

(1,784)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments (cont’d)
Company
2019							

RM

Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income					
Loss allowance on amount due from a subsidiary				

1,434,271
(300,635)

Fair value through profit or loss
Investment income from investment securities				
Fair value loss on fair value through profit or loss on financial assets			
Dividend income					

137,770
(242,700)
52,288

									
Group
2018							

1,080,994

RM

Net gains/(losses) arising from:
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income 					
Impairment loss of trade receivables					

1,781,415
(16,372)

Fair value through profit or loss
Investment income from investment securities				
Fair value (loss)/gain on fair value through profit or loss on financial assets			
Dividend income					

174,633
(704,902)
54,494

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Hire purchase interest					

(5,123)

									

1,284,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments (cont’d)
Company
2018							
Financial assets at amortised cost
Interest income					
Fair value through profit or loss
Investment income from investment securities				
Fair value loss on fair value through profit or loss on financial assets			
Dividend income					
									

RM
1,618,159
174,633
(704,902)
54,494
1,142,384

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial instruments.
The key financial risks include credit risk, interest rate risk, and liquidity risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s and of the Company’s businesses whilst managing its credit risk, interest rate
risk, and liquidity risk.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from the individual characteristics of
each customer.
Trade receivables and contract assets rating counter parties.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether any of the trade receivables are credit impaired.
The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables and contract assets are written off (either partially or full)
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group and the Company determine that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay amounts subject
to the write-off. Nevertheless, trade receivables and contract asset that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities.
There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group and the Company have no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposure to a single
customer or to a group of customers.
Exposure to credit risk
As the Group and the Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting period.
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to measure ECLs of trade receivables and contract assets.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three (3) years. The Group and the Company also
consider differences between (a) economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected,
(b) current conditions and (c) the Group’s and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. Nevertheless, the Company believes that these factors are immaterial for the purpose of impairment calculation
for the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)
Trade receivables and contract assets (cont’d)
Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of the Group trade receivables, as at reporting date is as follows:
							
							
Group					
2019					
Not past due				
Past due:					
- 1 - 30 days				
- 31 - 120 days			
- more than 120 days			
							
2018					
Not past due				
Past due:					
- 1 - 30 days				
- 31 - 120 days			
- more than 120 days			
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Gross carrying
amount
RM
352,271

Loss
allowance
RM
-

Carrying
amount
RM
352,271

748,734
131,335
20,866

(3,683)
(10,866)

748,734
127,652
10,000

1,253,206

(14,549)

1,238,657

252,699

-

252,699

220,670
159,560
32,744

(16,372)

220,670
159,560
16,372

665,673

(16,372)

649,301

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Credit risk (cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the end of the reporting period, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company did not recognised any allowance for impairment losses.
For other financial assets (including cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing
exclusively with high credit rating counter parties.
Deposits
Credit risks on deposits are mainly arising from deposits paid for office buildings rented. These deposits will be refunded at
the end of each lease terms. The Company manages the credit risk together with the leasing arrangement.
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company did not recognised any allowance for impairment losses.
Interest rate risk
The Group’s and the Company’s primary interest rate risk relates to interest earning from deposits with licensed banks and
term loans from financial institutions.
		
						
						

2019
RM

Group

Deposits with licensed banks		

44,254,842

48,340,333

39,129,552

42,951,263

Net exposure			

44,254,842

48,340,333

39,129,552

42,951,263

2018
RM

2019
RM

Company

2018
RM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Interest rate risk (cont’d)
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates as at the end of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant:
			
Group				 Company
2019		
2018		
2019		
2018
Increase/		
Increase/		
Increase/		
Increase/
(Decrease)		
(Decrease)		
(Decrease)		
(Decrease)
RM		
RM		
RM		
RM
Effects on profit after taxation
Increase of 10 basis points (“bp”)		
Decrease of 10 basis points (“bp”)		

33,634
(33,634)

36,739
(36,739)

29,738
(29,738)

32,643
(32,643)

Liquidity risk
The Group and the Company monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management
to finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s financial liabilities as at reporting date
based on undiscounted contractual payments:
			
Contractual		 Contractual
Carrying 		
interest		
cash		
Within		
More than
amount		
rate		
flows
1 year		
1 year
RM				
RM		 RM		
RM
Group
2019
Trade payables
Non-trade payables
and accruals		
Lease liabilities

1,328,923
79,692

				

1,641,737		

233,122

4%

233,122

233,122

-

1,328,923
84,550

1,328,923
33,000

51,550

1,646,595

1,595,045

51,550

2018
Trade payables
Non-trade payables
and accruals		

34,814

-

34,814

34,814

-

1,181,738

-

1,181,738

1,181,738

-

				

1,216,552		

1,216,552

1,216,552

-

									
Company
2019
Non-trade payables
and accruals		
178,665
178,665
178,665
2018
Non-trade payables
and accruals		

179,492

-

179,492

179,492
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Financial instruments (cont’d)
Fair values
The financial assets maturing within the next 12 months approximated fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
the financial instruments.
Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instrument carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:
•
•
•

Level 1:
Level 2:
		
Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for assets or liabilities, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

						
						

Level 1
RM

Level 2
RM

Level 3
RM

Total
RM

Group							
2019							
FVTPL financial asset		
8,090,037
150,000
8,240,037
Investment properties		
71,938,616
71,938,616
						

8,090,037

72,088,616

-

80,178,653

2018							
FVTPL financial asset		
8,196,240
150,000
8,346,240
Investment properties		
77,419,826
77,419,826
						

8,196,240

77,569,826

-

85,766,066

Company							
2019			
				
FVTPL financial asset		
8,090,037
150,000
8,240,037
2018							
FVTPL financial asset		
8,196,240
150,000
-

124

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD

8,346,240

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

28. Events subsequent to year end
In view of Covid-19 outbreak, the Government of Malaysia imposed Movement Control Order (MCO) since 18 March 2020.
The MCO remains as of the reporting date. Business operations and services during MCO were either stop or operating
remotely. This has resulted in our customers delaying their consideration and making decision of the proposals submitted by
us. Company also aware that there may be potential reduction in budgets by companies due to the business impact, projects
may still proceed but with reduced scope.
The directors of the Company believe that the outbreak of the COVID-19 and other precautionary measures imposed by the
Government may affect the business performance and position of the company. The financial impact cannot be reasonably
estimated at this juncture due to inherent nature and unpredictability outbreak which may have significant impact on market
sentiment. The extent of the impact depends on the (i) ongoing precautionary measures imposed by each country to address
this pandemic and (ii) the durations and extend of the outbreak. Accordingly, the directors will continue to monitor the
situations and respond proactively to mitigate the impact on the Company’s financial performance and financial position.
29. Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial year ended 31
December 2019.
The debt to equity ratio of the Group as at the end of the financial year end was as follows:
			
								
								

Group

2019
RM

2018
RM

Total interest-bearing borrowings				

-

-

Equity attributable to owners of the Group				

129,750,650

137,937,083

Debt to equity ratio (times)				

N/A

N/A

Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note 17, the Group is required to maintain a consolidated shareholder’s
equity equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid up capital (including treasury shares). The Group has
complied with this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

30. Significant event
On 10 February 2020, the Company has applied for extension of time to submit its regularisation plan to Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and has granted an approval for extension of time up to 30 June 2020 to submit its regularisation plan.
31. Prior year adjustment
Investment in associates
In the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, Efficient E-Solutions Berhad has received the
dividend of RM300,060 and RM900,000 respectively from Regalia Records Management Sdn. Bhd. However, the dividend
declared was deducted from investment in associates and now adjusted in the accounts. Subsequently, the investment in
associates is revised to RM1,800,000 for both financial years ended 2017 and 2018.
The Directors have made the prior year adjustments of the above matters in accordance with the requirements of MFRS
108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
The summaries of these adjustments are set out below:
							
							
							
							

As
previously
reported
RM

Prior year
adjustment
RM

As
restated
RM

1.1.2018
Company
Statements of financial position					
Non-current assets				
Investment in associate			
1,499,940
300,060
					
Equity					
Retained earnings			
(89,742,041)
(300,060)

1,800,000
(90,042,101)

31.12.2018						
Company				
Statements of financial position					
Non-current assets					
Investment in associate			
599,940
1,200,060
1,800,000
					
Equity					
Retained earnings			
(88,369,119)
(1,200,060)
(89,569,179)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

31. Prior year adjustment (cont’d)
							
							
							
							

As
previously
reported
RM

Prior year
adjustment
RM

As
restated
RM

1.1.2018
Company
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 				
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
Revenue					
58,192
300,060
358,252
Profit for the financial year			
109,171
300,060
409,231

31.12.2018						
Company					
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 				
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018
Revenue					
54,494
900,000
954,494
Loss for the financial year			
(1,372,922)
900,000
(472,922)

32. General information
The Company is a public limited company that is incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed
in Note 9 to the financial statements.
There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial
year.
The registered office and the principal place of business of the Company are located at No. 3, Jalan Astaka U8/82, Taman
Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong, Seksyen U8, Bukit Jelutong, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2020.
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Title / location

128

Description /
existing use

Tenure/
date of
expiry of
lease

Date of
acquisition
by the
Company

Approximate
age of
building
(years)

Total
land
areas
(sq. m)

Total
built-up
area
(sq. m)

Net book
value as at
31.12.2019
(RM)

HS (D) 142710, PT No. 17655,
Mukim Damansara, Daerah
Petaling, Negeri Selangor

Industrial land –3
Freehold land 30.06.2008
storey industrial
and building
building with 4 storey
office building /
production facility and
administration office

11

8,152.24

12,040.25

22,989,982

Parcel No. 2A-21-1, Level 21,
Block 2A, Plaza Sentral Phase
II, Jalan Stesen Sentral, 50470
Kuala Lumpur

Commercial office lot / Freehold
Office Lot
Administration office

11.07.2006

13

N/A

252.56

1,035,659

HS (D) 259792, PT 35062,
Mukim Damansara, Daerah
Petaling, Negeri Selangor
No. 2, Jalan N U8/N, Seksyen
U8/N, Bukit Jelutong, 40150
Shah Alam

Double storey shop
office

Freehold
double storey
shop office

15.06.2016

3

N/A

253.96

2,722,261

Parcel No. C1-22, Level 22,
Olive Tree Residences, Mukim
12, Daerah Barat Jaya, Penang

Condominum / Staff
Accomodation

Freehold
25.01.2013
Condominium

4

N/A

148.09

863,360

Parcel No. 11-01, Level 11,
Seaview Tower, Ocean Palms
Condominium, KM9 Batang
Tiga, Tanjong Kling, 76400
Melaka

Condominum / Staff
Accomodation

Freehold
08.10.2013
Condominium

23

N/A
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271,418

GRN245261, Lot 34650,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar
Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land 21.02.2014
and building

5

9,796.00

11,501.94

18,719,498

GRN245262, Lot 34651,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar
Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land 21.02.2014

5

12,168.00

N/A

3,232,343

GRN245268, Lot 34658,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar
Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land 08.07.2014

5

11,725.00

N/A

3,399,624

GRN245269, Lot 34659,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar
Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land 08.07.2014

5

11,566.00

N/A

3,350,665

GRN245270, Lot 34660,
Daerah Seremban, Bandar
Baru Enstek, Negeri Sembilan

Industrial land

Freehold land 10.03.2015

5

18,928.00

N/A

6,863,242
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 27 May 2020

Substantial Shareholders
					
Name				

Direct		
Shareholdings
%

Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd
107,795,000
Cheah Chee Kong 9,734,500		
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
6,000,000
Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd
106,200,000
Soon Yoke Leng		
Lim Hooi Teik			
66,690,200
Beaufort International Equities Inc.
63,896,600
Singapore Post Enterprise Private Limited
147,529,100
Singapore Post Limited
Singapore Telecommunications Limited
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited
-

15.20
1.37
0.85
14.98
9.41
9.01
20.80
-

Indirect
Shareholdings
106,200,000 1
213,995,000 ²
213,995,000 ²
-		
106,200,000 ³
-		
-		
-		
147,529,100 ⁴
147,529,100 ⁴
147,529,100 ⁴

%
14.98
30.18
30.18
14.98
20.80
20.80
20.80

Notes:
1.
Deemed interested by virtue of its shareholdings in Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd (“CSSSB”) pursuant to Section 8 of the
Companies Act 2016
2.
Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd (“CCKSB”) and CCKSB’s shareholdings in
CSSSB pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016
3.
Deemed interested by virtue of her shareholdings in CSSSB pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016
4.
Deemed interested in the shareholdings held by Singapore Post Enterprise Private Limited (“SPE”) by virtue of Section 8 of
the Companies Act 2016
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 27 May 2020

(cont’d)

Directors’ Shareholdings
					
Name				

Direct		
Shareholdings
%

Dato’ Abdul Latif bin Abdullah
Cheah Chee Kong		
Victor Cheah Chee Wai
Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani
Ho Hin Choy			
Voong Kian Yee		

100,000
9,734,500
6,000,000
-

0.01
1.37
0.85
-

Indirect
Shareholdings
-		
213,995,000 1
213,995,000 1
-		
-		
-		

%
30.18
30.18
-

Notes:
Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Cheah Chee Kong Sdn Bhd (“CCKSB”) and CCKSB’s shareholdings in
Cheah Swee Sin Sdn Bhd (“CSSSB”) pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016

1.

Class of Equity Security
Issued & fully paid-up capital
Class of shares		
Voting rights			

: RM75,546,598
: Ordinary shares
: One vote per ordinary share

Distribution of Shareholdings
Holdings					

No. of Holders

Less than 100 shares		
100 to 1,000 shares		
1,001 to 10,000 shares		
10,001 to 100,000 shares		
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares		
5% and above of issued shares		

7
334
665
920
192
6

283
98,049
4,677,568
35,523,100
142,179,500
526,651,600

0.00
0.02
0.66
5.01
20.05
74.26

2,124

709,130,100

100.00

Total
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Total Holdings

%

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 27 May 2020

(cont’d)

30 Largest Shareholders
NO. NAME			

NO. OF SHARES

%

1

AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
147,529,100
20.80
DBS VICKERS SECS (S) PTE LTD FOR SINGAPORE POST
ENTERPRISE PRIVATE LIMITED				

2

AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT - AMBANK (M) BERHAD FOR
CHEAH CHEE KONG SDN BHD

106,500,000

15.02

3

CHEAH SWEE SIN SDN BHD		

106,200,000

14.98

4

HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
EXEMPT AN FOR JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
(SINGAPOREJPMPB)

51,896,600

7.32

5

HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD		
EXEMPT AN FOR CREDIT SUISSE (SG BR-TST-ASING)

46,540,700

6.56

6

LIM HOOI TEIK		

34,145,000

4.82

7 HOR ING NOAR		
					
8 LIM HOOI TEIK		

33,970,300

4.79

32,545,200

4.59

9,734,500

1.37

9

CHEAH CHEE KONG		

10 LIM CHEE KANG		
6,473,100
0.91
								
11 VICTOR CHEAH CHEE WAI		
6,000,000
0.85
12 CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHD BASAR BIN PARNGON (MM0914)
						
13 CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YEAP KAM HONG (THE CURVE-CL)
					
14 TAN KOI ONG		
					
15 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD		
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KHOO SIEW SIEW

4,499,200

0.63

4,160,200

0.59

4,057,000

0.57

3,231,500

0.46
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS AT 27 May 2020

(cont’d)

NO. NAME			

NO. OF SHARES

%

16 LOWRENCE TAN CHENG JIN

3,174,300

0.45

17 LEONG SIEW LYN

2,100,000

0.30

18 YONG LOY HUAT

2,000,000

0.28

19 LIM HUI HUAT @ LIM HOOI CHANG

1,942,400

0.27

20 JAMES TAN CHENG YEW

1,821,400

0.26

21 RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LAI CHIE KING

1,700,000

0.24

22 ZHAN YIHUI		

1,560,200

0.22

23 YONG HUA TING

1,400,000

0.20

24 RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
BALACHANDRAN A/L GOVINDASAMY (JBA)

1,300,000

0.18

25 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI BOON CHAI

1,200,000

0.17

26 UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD ( A/C CLIENTS )

1,119,400

0.16

27 LIM YANG PEI		

1,004,500

0.14

28 CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN ENG LEONG (MQ0437)

1,000,000

0.14

29 CHEAH CHEE KONG SDN BHD

1,000,000

0.14

30 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
1,000,000
0.14
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LAU ENG GUANG			
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Auditorium, Efficient Building,
No. 3 Jalan Astaka U8/82, Taman Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong, Seksyen U8 Bukit Jelutong, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul
Ehsan on Thursday, 23 July 2020 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following businesses:
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 To refer to Explanatory
Note 2
together with the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
		
2. To approve the payment of Directors’ benefits by the Company of up to RM280,000.00 with effect Ordinary Resolution 1
from 24 July 2020 until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
		
3. To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Clause 86.1 of the Company’s Constitution:
i)
Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah
ii) Ho Chin Choy
iii) Voong Kian Yee
		
4. To re-elect Dato’ Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani, the Director who retires pursuant to Clause 85.3 of the
Company’s Constitution.
		
5. To re-appoint Messrs PKF as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the
Directors to determine their remuneration.
Special Business:
To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following resolutions:
		
6. Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director
		
“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah who has served as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9)
years, to continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
		
7. Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director
		
“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr Ho Hin Choy who has served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
		
8. Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director		

Ordinary Resolution 2
Ordinary Resolution 3
Ordinary Resolution 4
Ordinary Resolution 5
Ordinary Resolution 6

Ordinary Resolution 7

Ordinary Resolution 8

Ordinary Resolution 9

“THAT authority be and is hereby given to Mr Voong Kian Yee who has served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, to
continue to act as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”
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(cont’d)

Ordinary Resolution 10
9. Approval for Allotment of shares or Grant of rights
			
“THAT the Directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the
Companies Act 2016, to allot and issue not more than twenty percent (20%) of the total number
of issued shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if any) at any time, upon such terms
and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors in their absolute discretion deem fit or in
pursuance of offers, agreements or options to be made or granted by the Directors while this
approval is in force, and that the Directors be and are hereby further authorised to make or grant
offers, agreements or options which would or might require shares to be allotted and issued after
the expiration of the approval hereof, and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain
the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so allotted and issued on the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad”.
		
10. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate to enable Efficient E-Solutions Berhad to Ordinary Resolution 11
purchase up to 10% of its issued and paid-up share capital (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”)
		
“THAT subject to all the applicable laws and regulations, the Directors be and are hereby authorised
to purchase the ordinary shares of the Company through the stock exchange of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad at any time upon such terms and conditions as the Directors in their absolute
discretion deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased (which are to be
treated as treasury shares) does not exceed 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company; and the funds allocated for the purchase of shares shall not exceed its retained profits
for the time being.
THAT the Directors be and are hereby further authorised to deal with the treasury shares in their
absolute discretion (which may be distributed as dividends, resold and/or cancelled).
THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company following the general meeting at which the Proposed Share Buy-Back
was passed at which time it will lapse, unless by an ordinary resolution passed at that meeting, the
authority is renewed either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or the expiration of the period
within which the next annual general meeting after that date is required by law to be held; or the
revocation or variation by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, whichever occurs first.
AND THAT the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to do all acts and things
(including executing such documents as may be required) to give effect to the aforesaid share
buyback in the best interest of the Company.”
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(cont’d)

11. To transact any other ordinary business for which due notice shall has been given.
By Order of the Board
TAN KEAN WAI MAICSA 7056310
Company Secretary
Selangor Darul Ehsan
24 June 2020
Notes:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

7.

Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 17 July 2020 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint
proxy to attend and vote for his/her behalf.
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one (1) or two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his behalf.
A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and there shall be no restriction as to the qualifications of the proxy.
Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be
represented by each proxy.
Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 that holds
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) there is no limit to the number
of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy form should be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly
authorised. The corporation may by its resolution of its Board or a certificate of authorization by the corporation to appoint a person or
persons to act as its representative or representatives to attend and vote on their behalf.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
meeting or any adjournment thereof at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy
shall not be treated as valid. An instrument appointing a proxy to vote at this Meeting shall be deemed to include the power to demand, or
join in demanding a poll on behalf of the appointor. Faxed, photocopied, and electronically scanned copies of the duly executed Form
of Proxy are not acceptable.

Explanatory Notes
1.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the resolutions set out in
this Notice will be put to vote by poll.

2.

Item 1 of the Agenda
This item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 248(2) and 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 does not require
shareholders’ approval for the Audited Financial Statements. Henceforth, this item is not put forward for voting by shareholders of the
Company.
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3.

(cont’d)

Ordinary Resolution 1
Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016, the fees of the directors, and any benefits payable to the directors including
compensation for loss of employment of a director or former director of a listed company and its subsidiaries, shall be approved at a general
meeting.
The benefits payable to the Directors have been reviewed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company, which recognises that the benefits payable are in the best interest of the Company. The benefits includes meeting and travelling
allowances.

4.

Ordinary Resolutions 7,8 & 9
The resolutions, if approved, will authorise the continuity in office of the Directors. An annual assessment on the effectiveness of the
Directors (including the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors) have been undertaken for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 and the results were satisfactory to the Board.

5.

Ordinary Resolution 10
The Company had, during the 16th AGM held on 27 June 2019, obtained its shareholders’ approval for the general mandate for issuance
of shares. No share has been issued as at the date of this Notice as there were no requirements for such fund raising activities.
The proposed resolution 10 is a renewal of the existing mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company for issuance of shares by
the Company under Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016. This mandate, if passed, will empower the directors of the Company
to allot and issue shares in the Company up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being for such purposes as they consider would be in the interest of the Company. This would avoid any delay and cost involved
in convening a general meeting to specifically approve such an issue of shares for fund raising activities, including but not limited to placing
of shares for the purpose of funding current and/or future investment project(s), working capital, repayment of bank borrowings, and/or
acquisition and/or so forth as well as any strategic opportunities involving equity deals which may require the Company to allot and issue
new shares on urgent basis. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting will expire at the next AGM of the Company.

6.

Ordinary Resolution 11
The proposed resolution 11, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to purchase the Company’s shares up to ten percent
(10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company. Please refer to the Statement to Shareholders dated 24 June 2020 in relation
to the Proposed Share Buy-Back for further details.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF SEVENTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (“17TH AGM”)
Pursuant to paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“MMLR”)

•

Details of individuals who are standing for election as Directors
No individual is seeking election as a Director at the forthcoming 17th AGM of the Company.

•

Statement relating to general mandate for issue of securities in accordance with Paragraph 6.03(3) of the MMLR
The details of the general mandate are set out in item 5 of the Explanatory Note of the Notice of 17th AGM dated 24 June
2020.
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PROXY FORM

CDS Account No.:
Number of shares held:

I/ We,

NRIC/ Passport No./ Company No.
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Of
(FULL ADDRESS)

being *a member/ members of EFFICIENT E-SOLUTIONS BERHAD, hereby appoint
NRIC/ Passport No.
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Of
(FULL ADDRESS)

*and/ or failing him/ her,

NRIC/ Passport No.
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Of
(FULL ADDRESS)

or the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/ our proxy to vote for *me/ us on *my/ our behalf at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at Auditorium, Efficient Building, No. 3 Jalan Astaka U8/82, Taman Perindustrian Bukit Jelutong, Seksyen U8 Bukit Jelutong, 40150
Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 23 July 2020 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof and to vote as indicated below:No. Resolutions

For

1.

Ordinary Resolution 1

Approval for Directors’ Benefits

2.

Ordinary Resolution 2

Re-election of Dato' Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah as Director

3.

Ordinary Resolution 3

Re-election of Mr Ho Hin Choy as Director

4.

Ordinary Resolution 4

Re-election of Mr Voong Kian Yee as Director

5.

Ordinary Resolution 5

Re-election of Dato' Robiah Binti Abdul Ghani as Director

6.

Ordinary Resolution 6

Re-appointment of Messrs PKF as Auditors

7.

Ordinary Resolution 7

Retention of Dato’ Abdul Latif Bin Abdullah as Independent Non-Executive Director

8.

Ordinary Resolution 8

Retention of Mr Ho Hin Choy as Independent Non-Executive Director

9.

Ordinary Resolution 9

Retention of Mr. Voong Kian Yee as Independent Non-Executive Director

Against

10. Ordinary Resolution 10 Approval for Allotment of shares or Grant of rights
11. Ordinary Resolution 11 Proposed Share Buy-Back
Please indicate with an “X” or “√” in the space provided above how you wish your votes to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is
given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his/her discretion.
Date:
* Delete if inapplicable
NOTES
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.

Signature/ Common Seal of Shareholder

Only members registered in the Record of Depositors as at 17 July 2020 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy to attend and vote for his/her behalf.
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one (1) or two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his behalf.
A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and there shall be no restriction as to the qualifications of the proxy.
Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.
Where a member is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 that holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple
beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus
account it holds.
If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy form should be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. The corporation may by its resolution
of its Board or a certificate of authorization by the corporation to appoint a person or persons to act as its representative or representatives to attend and vote on their behalf.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof at which the person named in the instrument proposes
to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid. An instrument appointing a proxy to vote at this Meeting shall be deemed to include the power to demand, or
join in demanding a poll on behalf of the appointor. Faxed, photocopied, and electronically scanned copies of the duly executed Form of Proxy are not acceptable.

Postage

The Company Secretary
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